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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE & AGENDA 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District will hold a Regular Board Meeting beginning at 5:00 P.M. 
on Tuesday May 14, 2024. The meeting will be held at the Temporary District Office 
Conference Room, 2300 Roosevelt Blvd., Channel Islands Beach, CA 93035. 

The agenda is as follows: 

A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
1. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the
purview of the District and which are not on the agenda. (Time limit 3 minutes per
speaker)

C. CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Approve the Agenda Order

2. Financial Reports:
a. Cash Disbursal & Receipt Report – April 2024

3. Minutes:
a. April 9, 2024, Regular Board Meeting
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4.  Authorize customer request for relief from water charges due to leaks on the 
property consistent with Resolution 16-06: 

 
 

 
 Account Number Water Relief Sewer Relief Total Relief 

a.  11710-03 $110.41 $302.16 $412.57 
    $412.57 

 
 

D.       ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
1. FY 2022 – 2023 ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT  
Recommendation: 
1) Approve Reserve and Allocations (transfers) for June 30, 2023. 
2) Approve the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District Annual Audit 
Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023. 
3) Authorize staff to present a Final Audit Report.  
 
 
2. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN CHANNEL ISLANDS 
BEACH CSD AND BROWN ARMSTRONG ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION FOR 
FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES 
Recommendation: 
1) Authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with Brown Armstrong for a 
3-year term for financial auditing for an amount not to exceed $75,000. 
 
 
3. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 24-01 REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF 
THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ELECTION 
WITH THE NOVEMBER 05, 2024, GENERAL ELECTION 
Recommendation: 
1) Adopt Resolution 24-01 
2) Approve Elective Office to be filled form 
 
 
4. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS FACILITY CONSTRUCTION 
UPDATE 
Recommendation: 
1) Receive and File. 
 
 
 
E. INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 
1. Report from Board Members of any meeting or conference where compensation for 
attendance was received. 
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F. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
G. GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA POSTING CERTIFICATION 

 
  This agenda was posted Friday, May 10, 2024, by 5:00 PM. The agenda is posted at 

the District Office and two public notice bulletin boards, which are accessible 24 hours 
per day. The locations include:  

• Hollywood Beach School, 4000 Sunset Lane 
• Corner Store, 2425 Roosevelt Blvd.  
• Temporary District Office, 2300 Roosevelt Blvd. 

 
Agendas are also posted on the District’s website at www.cibcsd.com.  
 
 
Peter Martinez 
General Manager 
 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION, INCLUDING 
AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, IN ORDER TO ATTEND OR PARTICIPATE IN A MEETING, SHOULD 
BE MADE TO THE SECRETARY OF THE BOARD IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING TO ENSURE THE 
AVAILABILITY OF REQUESTED SERVICE OR ACCOMODATION. NOTICES, AGENDAS AND PUBLIC 
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE BOARD MEETINGS CAN BE MADE AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATIVE 
FORMAT UPON REQUEST. 
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MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING, April 9, 2024 
 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

President Brewer called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M. In attendance, Vice President 
Lebow, Director Bouchard, Director Debley, Director Nast, General Manager, Peter 
Martinez, General Counsel, Dennis McNulty, Clerk of the Board, Erika Davis, Office 
Manager, CJ Dillon, and Operations Manager Jesus (Chuy) Navarro. 

 
B.      PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None. 
 

C.      CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Director Bouchard made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar. Director Debley 
seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

Brewer, Lebow, Bouchard, Debley, Nast  5 - Yes 0 -No 
 
 
D. ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
1. DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS FACILITY CONSTRUCTION 
UPDATE 

General Manager Martinez stated that the construction began October 2, 2023, and as 
of February 29, 2024, is at 28% completion. The projected completion date is the end of 
September 2024. As of February 2024, the District has made 5 payments for a total 
amount of $914,148. To date there are 2 change orders. Change order #1 in the 
amount of $52,148.08 and Change order #2 in the amount of $42,399.83. General 
Manager Martinez noted that District Staff has self-performed various tasks onsite and 
will continue to self-perform necessary work to keep project costs down. The estimated 
savings to the District currently is about $15,000- $20,000. Board asked questions. 
There was no public comment. General Manager Martinez said per the request of the 
Facilities Committee Members District Administration and Operations Facility 
construction updates will be given at the Regular Board Meetings until the project is 
complete. 
 

2. AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT WITH COASTAL ARCHITECTS 

9



General Manager said due to additional architectural services that needed to be 
performed he is asking the Board to approve an amendment to the agreement with 
Coastal Architects for an amount not to exceed $33,436 bringing the revised total 
contract amount to $81,211. There was no public comment. President Brewer made the 
motion to approve Staff’s recommendation. Director Bouchard seconded the motion. 
The motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Brewer: YES, Lebow: YES, Bouchard: YES, Debley: YES, Nast: YES 5 - Yes 0 -No 

 
 
3. PROPOSED METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT RATE INCREASE 

General Manager Martinez explained that the District’s current water portfolio is 
comprised of approximately 80% groundwater that we receive from United Water 
Conservation District and 20% of imported water that we receive via Calleguas Mutual 
Water Distict. These two water sources are blended at the Port Hueneme Water Agency 
Facility then delivered to the District. Metropolitan Water District (MWD) anticipates a 
rate increase of 13.6% effective January 2025 followed by an additional increase of 8% 
January 2026 due to the need to replenish reserves to meet minimum requirements, 
historically low water sales, inflation, and pending large necessary capital investments 
to maintain reliability. These rate increases would then be passed through via Calleguas 
Mutual Water District. The final impact of these increases will not be determined until 
June 2024 pending the approval of Calleguas Mutual Water District’s budget and rate- 
setting process. Due to the implications for our District and its ratepayers the District 
has taken proactive measures by submitting an opposition letter concerning the rate 
increases. There was no public comment. Board discussion took place. General 
Manager Martinez emphasized that the District is closely monitoring the situation and 
will provide further updates as developments unfold.    

 

E. INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 
1. Report from Board Members for any meeting or conference where compensation for 
attendance was received. 
 
Vice President Lebow and Director Debley attended the Facilities Committee Meeting 
on March 28, 2024. Vice President Lebow reported that the Facilities Committee 
members ask that Staff continue to keep the Board informed with comprehensive 
building updates at Regular Board meetings until the project’s completion. 
 
 
 

 
F. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
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President Brewer asked that General Manager Martinez provide information to residents 
that were affected by recent flooding in the area regarding the County of Ventura’s 
response to the situation. 

President Brewer asked that updates regarding the adjudication be given to the Board 
when important developments occur. 

Director Bouchard asked General Manager Martinez to reach out to the CHP liaison in 
the area and ask what measures can be taken to deter speeding in high volume 
pedestrian areas within the District.  

Director Nast asked that General Manager Martinez contact City of Oxnard regarding 
SCADA system and sharing information with Ventura Regional Sanitation District.  

Director Debley shared that there were discussions underway about possibly redirecting 
the discharge from the storm drainage system at Kiddie Beach down Ocean Drive near 
Bardsdale Avenue. 

 
G.  GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 

General Counsel had no comment. 

General Manager Martinez announced that new hire Chaz Ryan started at the District 
Monday, April 1, 2024, and new hire Rick Rivera will start Monday, April 15, 2024.  

General Manager Martinez said the RFP for auditing services will close on Wednesday, 
April 17, 2024, and he will be bringing it to the Board next meeting. 

General Manager Martinez asked that the Board complete the Strategic Planning 
Survey. 

 

The Board Meeting adjourned at 5:43 p.m.  
 
_____________________________________________   
Kristina Brewer, President                                  
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Regular Board Meeting, May 14, 2024  
 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  Peter Martinez, General Manager 
Subject:  FY 2022 – 2023 Annual Audit Report 
Item No.  D-1 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. Approve Reserve and Allocations (transfers) for June 30, 2023. 
2. Approve the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District Annual Audit Report for 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023. 
3. Authorize staff to present a Final Audit Report.  

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No impact to future budget. Board action validates the independent and 
professional review of the District’s financial statements to ensure the agency is compliant with 
all State reporting rules and guidelines. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
Attached for Board review is the Final FY 2022 – 2023 Audit Report prepared by Teaman, 
Ramirez, & Smith, Inc. Presented to the Board by Richard Teaman, Partner, CPA and Rick Gallo, 
Lead Field Manager. 

There are no issues reported for the District’s financial statements, internal controls and 
compliance with fiscal policies set by the Board. The reports indicated the following breakdown of 
performance by enterprise and can be tied directly to the audit on the page indicated in the table 
below. 

Enterprise/Account Performance Page 
Water Enterprise $199,783 Page 56 
Sewer Enterprise $446,234 Page 59 
Solid Waste Enterprise (66,241) Page 61 
Community Service $65,146 Page 63 

 

Pages 4 through 8 of the Audit Report detail the Financial Highlights of the fiscal year. The 
conclusions represented in the audit are arrived at based on the following procedures auditors 
perform during the audit, but are not limited to: 
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• Review all bank statements and cancelled checks, including bank reconciliations. 
• Review accounts receivable, analysis and sampling of customer pay histories and rates 

and confirm with the customer the actual amount paid during the year. 
• Review procedures and policies of the District to ascertain the staff is in compliance. 
• Review accounts payable, including verification of payments. 
• Review payroll records for accuracy of pay rates, overtime, accrued vacation and sick 

time. 
• Review contracts with vendors to ascertain the District is in compliance with the 

agreement. 
• Prepare the audited financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards and generally accepted accounting principal. 

Prior 21T to considering the Audit Report, the Board must approve the allocations, or transfer of funds, 
between the District’s accounts. This is an annual exercise that shifts funds within each Enterprise 
to help meet the District’s established reserve policies. The allocations are summarized in 
Attachment 1.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Allocations and Reserves for June 30, 2023 
2. Final 2023 Financial Statements 
3. Final 2023 Internal Control Report 
4. Final 2023 Governance Conclusion Communication Letter 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Channel Islands Beach Community 
  Services District 
Oxnard, CA 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (the 
“District”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position 
of the District, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and its cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months 
beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly 
thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
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when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and 
analysis and the required supplementary section on pages 4 - 8 and 48 - 50 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain 
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements.  The supplemental information section is presented for the purpose of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
supplemental information section is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated _____ __, 2024, on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
_____ __, 2024 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

As management of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, we offer readers of the 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of 
the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District and its financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2023. 
 

OVERVIEW 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

This discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.  The 
District’s basic financial statements reflect the combined results of the Operating and Capital Programs and 
include four components: 1) Statements of Net Position; 2) Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position; 3) Statements of Cash Flows; and, 4) Notes to the Financial Statements.  In addition to the basic 
financial statements, supplementary information is also presented. 
 
 The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows/outflows of resources with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
 The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how the 
District’s net position changed during the year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods 
(e.g., depreciation). 
 
 The Statement of Cash Flows presents information regarding the District’s use of cash during the year.  
Cash flows will differ from revenues and expenses because the statement accounts only for transactions that 
resulted in the District’s receipt or payment of cash during the year. 
 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Board of Directors restricted the following amounts to their respective utilities: 

 Water - $2,190,672 for Capital and future unanticipated repairs and maintenance of the water distribution 
system, $462,614 operating reserve, $85,000 for debt service and $199,045 for rate stabilization. 

 Sewer - $4,161,717 for Capital and future unanticipated repairs and maintenance of sewer system, 
281,903 operating reserve, $191,000 for debt service and $126,761 for rate stabilization.  

 Trash - $18,000 for Capital and future unanticipated repairs and maintenance, $214,378 for operating 
reserve and $99,751 for rate stabilization. 

 Community service - $244,472 for Capital and future unanticipated repairs and maintenance and $7,856 
for operating reserve. 
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 In 2021, the District hired an outside consultant to conduct a 5-year rate study to calculate the cost of 
providing services, cost of future maintenance requirements of the District’s infrastructure and cost of 
future capital expenditures. The results of this study gave the District a 5-year rate adjustment 
schedule from 2021 through 2026 and was implemented via Proposition 218 hearing and notice. 
Based on the recommendation of the outside consultants, the board of directors has initiated a rate 
increase with effect from the billing period starting September 1, 2021. There was an increase of 3% 
on water rate, 3% on wastewater rate and 2.5% on solid waste removal rate. The board of directors 
also initiated another rate increase of 3% on water rate, 3% on wastewater rate and 2.5% on solid 
waste removal rate with effect from the billing period starting July 1, 2022. The board anticipates 
more changes in rate structure will take place in the near term to maintain the level of services 
provided by the District.    
 

 The District amended its contract with the City of Oxnard regarding a shared sewer line. Effective 
January 1, 2023, the City will bill the District the estimated charges for the District’s use of the shared 
sewer line rather than the full charges of the shared sewer line. In previous years, the District would 
pay for the full charges of the shared sewer line and the City would then reimburse the District for the 
City’s estimated portion. This reduced the reimbursement revenue from the City of Oxnard and the 
related wastewater transportation costs by 50%.   

 
 Investments were mostly moved to a new investment account with California CLASS which is 

expected to have a higher rate of return than the Ventura County Treasurer’s Investment Pool. The 
District had approximately $8,153,256 invested in the California CLASS investment pool at year end.  

 
 For construction in progress, the District had approximately $1 million in additions and $834,050 in 

deletions. Most of this is related to a waterline relocation project that was capitalized for $617,262 
and a valve improvement project capitalized for $216,788. The District also started on the 
construction of the new administrative building which required staff to move to a temporary office 
location.  

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NET POSITION 

 
The District’s Net Position as of June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021 totaled $16,539,948, $15,891,180 and 
$15,141,538 respectively.  At the end of the current year, the District is able to report positive balances in all 
categories of net position.  The District's net position increased by $648,768 from the prior year. 
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FIGURE 1.  NET POSITION  
 

As of June 30, 2023 As of June 30, 2022 As of June 30, 2021
Assets

Current Assets 8,910,715$            9,368,653$            9,164,935$            
Restricted Assets 112,300                 104,181                 94,455                  
Capital Assets, Net 7,943,184              7,181,254              6,899,050              
Other Assets 2,665,541              2,772,731              2,848,685              

TOTAL ASSETS 19,631,740$           19,426,819$           19,007,125$           

Deferred Outflows of Resources
   Pension Related Items 122,529$               139,436$               103,388$               

Deferred Amount on Refunding 33,339                  36,042                  50,544                  

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 155,868$               175,478$               153,932$               

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 619,704$               934,660$               1,298,941$            
Long-Term Debt 2,612,433              2,774,044              2,720,540              

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,232,137$            3,708,704$            4,019,481$            

Deferred Inflows of Resources
   Pension Related Items 262$                     2,413$                  38$                       
   OPEB Related Items 15,261                  -                           -                           

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 15,523$                 2,413$                  38$                       

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,561,845$            4,621,633$            3,876,666$            
Unrestricted 10,978,103            11,269,547            11,264,872            

TOTAL NET POSITION 16,539,948$           15,891,180$           15,141,538$           
 

 
Total assets increased by $204,921. This is due to the net variances from current assets, capital assets and other 
assets.  
 
Current assets decreased by $457,938. This was due to other receivables decreasing by $248,760 and Board 
restricted cash and cash equivalents decreasing by $244,823. Other receivables decreased due to the new 
agreement with the City of Oxnard and cash and cash equivalents decreased due to the increased activity for 
constructions in progress.   
 
Capital assets increased by $761,930. The increase was due to additions in construction in progress of $1 million, 
mostly related to water system improvements, a vehicle purchase of $91,176 and deletion of $419,176 for older 
assets including the demolition of the old administrative office.  
 
Other assets related to the investment in the Port Hueneme Water Agency decreased by $85,669 since there were 
no significant capital contributions from the member agencies and it had a decrease in net position of $433,512. 
 
Total liabilities decreased by $476,567 which is due to a decrease in long-term debt due to principal payments 
made on the outstanding sewer water bond and a loan for the water meter project.  
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REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
Charges for operating services totaled $4,718,457, $5,292,413 and $5,345,159, respectively for the years 

ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021.  The District is reporting operating income of $450,564, $798,810, and 
$924,895, respectively for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021.  Operating expenses before 
depreciation and amortization totaled $3,903,358, $4,137,222 and $4,046,407, respectively for the years ended 
June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021.  Depreciation and amortization expenses totaled $364,535, $356,381 and 
$373,857, respectively as of June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021. 

 
FIGURE 2.  REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30:  

 
2023 2022 2021

Revenues
Charges for Operating Services 4,718,457$            5,292,413$            5,345,159$            
Interest 226,753                 29,265                  43,093                  
Other Non-Operating Revenues* 50,004                  6,249                    8,074                    
Development impact fee 20,784                  24,840                  68,416                  

TOTAL REVENUES 5,015,998$            5,352,767$            5,464,742$            

Expenses
Operating Expenses 4,267,893$            4,493,603$            4,420,264$            
Other Non-Operating Expenses 82,399                  92,584                  107,368                 
Depreciation on Contributed Assets 16,938                  16,938                  16,938                  

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,367,230$            4,603,125$            4,544,570$            

Change in Net Position 648,768$               749,642$               920,172$               

Net Position at Beginning of Year 15,891,180$           15,141,538$           14,221,366$           

Net Position at End of Year 16,539,948$           15,891,180$           15,141,538$           
 

 

 Includes $68,731, $80,537 and $88,169 loss from Joint Venture for years ended June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 

 
Total revenues decreased by $336,769. This was mostly due to a decrease in charges for services by $573,956 and 
an increase in investment earnings by $197,488. Charges for services decreased due to a decrease of $497,519 of 
sewer revenue from the City of Oxnard. This was due to the amended agreement with the City. Investment 
earnings increased due to better rates of return from transferring amounts to the California CLASS investment 
pool and generally overall the rates of return have improved over the prior year.  
 
Total expenses decreased by $235,895. Most of the decrease is due to the decrease in sewer system expenses by 
$340,361. This was due to the decrease in wastewater transportation costs from the amended agreement with the 
City of Oxnard. Generally, most of the other expenses increased due to rising costs and administrative costs 
increased due to relocation costs for the temporary administrative office.  
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8 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 The District’s Capital Assets for 2021, 2022 and 2023 are as follows:  
 

Less Net
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Depreciable Assets

2021 12,619,433$       (5,720,383)$                      6,899,050$                       

2022 13,251,855$       (6,070,601)$                      7,181,254$                       

2023 13,982,267$       (6,039,083)$                      7,943,184$                        
 

During the current year, the District capitalized various operating assets totaling $115,361. There is a 
construction in progress in the current year totaling $1,034,227. $834,050 completed construction is moved from 
construction in progress to capital assets. There is a deletion of $419,176 capital assets. Please refer to Note 4, 
Capital Assets, presented in the Notes to Financial Statements for additional detail regarding the District’s Capital 
Assets. 
 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had $2,800,826 total long-term debt outstanding.  For 
2022 and 2021, the District had $2,955,029 and $3,197,805 total long-term debt outstanding.  Please refer to Note 
5, Long-Term Debt, presented in the Notes to Financial Statements for additional detail regarding the District’s 
Long-Term Debt. 
 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND BUDGET 
 

The District does not anticipate any increase in business or water consumption within the Harbor for 
Fiscal Year 2023-24.  However, when the economic climate improves, the District anticipates significant 
redevelopment or new development to occur within the Channel Islands Harbor resulting in increased 
consumption and revenues.  The District will take that into consideration in future budget years. 
 

Another factor affecting the District’s operation is California’s ongoing drought and state’s mandated 
water conservation program.  Although the District has ample water supplies to meet current customer demands, 
the District has implemented stage 1 water supply shortage regulations, which includes limits on outdoor watering 
and wasteful water practices.  The District’s efforts to comply with state mandated water conservation 
requirements has resulted in decreased water consumption by District’s customers. 
 

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
 This financial report is designed to provide the Board, the District’s Member Agencies, taxpayers, and 
creditors with a general overview of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District’s accountability for 
the money it manages.  If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact 
the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District’s Administration Department, 353 Santa Monica Drive 
Oxnard, California, 93035. 
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2023 2022

ASSETS 
Current Assets:

Unrestricted Cash (Notes 1, 2 and 3) 105,000$          105,000$          
Board Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1, 2 and 3) 8,283,169         8,527,992         
Accounts Receivable (Note 1) 381,530            398,375            
Other Receivable (Note 1) -                       248,760            
Interest Receivable 66,833              12,892              
Prepaid Items (Note 1) 68,567              68,471              
Inventory (Note 1) 5,616                7,163                

Total Current Assets 8,910,715         9,368,653         
                         

Noncurrent Assets:                          
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 1, 2 and 3) 112,300            104,181            
Net Pension Asset -                       21,521              
Land and Construction in Progress, Not Being Depreciated (Note 4) 911,354            711,177            
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation  (Note 4) 7,031,830         6,470,077         

Total Noncurrent Assets 8,055,484         7,306,956         

OTHER ASSETS
Investment in Water JPA, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Notes 3 and 12) 2,665,541         2,751,210         

Total Other Assets 2,665,541         2,751,210         

Total Assets 19,631,740       19,426,819       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding (Note 1) 33,339              36,042              
Pension Related Items (Note 7) 122,529            139,436            

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 155,868$          175,478$          

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Statements of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
9
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2023 2022

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 169,278$           431,418$          
Other Liabilities (Note 1) 7,861                 42,487              
Current Portion of Long-term Debt (Note 5) 188,393             180,985            
Accrued Payroll, Taxes and Benefits 119,253             148,116            
Customer Deposits 112,300             104,181            
Accrued Interest 22,619               27,473              

Total Current Liabilities 619,704             934,660            

Long-term Debt (Note 5):
Wastewater Refunding Series 2016 Bond Payable, Net 2,067,847          2,191,186         
Loan Payable 449,678             515,663            
Net Pension Liability 19,484               -                       
Net OPEB Liability 263,817             248,180            

Total Long-term Debt, Net of Unamortized
Premium (Note 5) 2,800,826          2,955,029         

Less Current Portion (188,393)           (180,985)          

Total Long-term Debt 2,612,433          2,774,044         

Total Liabilities 3,232,137          3,708,704         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Related Items (Note 7) 262                    2,413                
OPEB Related Items (Note 8) 15,261               -                       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 15,523               2,413                

NET POSITION (Notes 1 and 6)
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,561,845          4,621,633         
Unrestricted 10,978,103        11,269,547       

Total Net Position 16,539,948$      15,891,180$     

June 30, 2023 and 2022

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Statements of Net Position - Continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
10
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2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES
Water Revenue 2,026,885$            2,086,617$            
Sewer Revenue 1,357,582              1,396,483              
Sewer Revenue - Oxnard 497,520                 995,039                 
Trash Revenue 836,470                 814,274                 

Total Operating Revenues 4,718,457              5,292,413              

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water System Expenses:

PHWA Water Expenses 805,104                 754,937                 
Water Samples 14,137                   11,264                   
SDHS Annual Administrative Fee 18,582                   16,646                   
Cross Connect Contract Charges 2,650                     1,500                     
Repairs and Maintenance - Distribution 143,345                 109,509                 
Water Quality Report -                             1,354                     
Telemetry 10,422                   10,310                   

Total Water System Expenses 994,240                 905,520                 

Sewer System Expenses:
Waste Water Transportation - Oxnard 506,089                 905,371                 
Operations and Maintenance 95,673                   36,291                   
Telemetry 32,021                   32,805                   
Power 23,881                   23,558                   

Total Sewer System Expenses 657,664                 998,025                 

Trash Expenses:
Trash Services 606,092                 592,379                 

Total Trash Expenses 606,092                 592,379                 

Maintenance Expenses:
Vehicle Expenses 12,686                   19,883                   
Building Maintenance and Security 8,708                     17,405                   
Sign and Banner Expense 1,036                     -                             
Public Landscape Project 4,099                     5,181                     
Employee Workplace Safety 2,786                     4,232                     
Gasoline Expenses 22,955                   15,337                   

Total Maintenance Expenses 52,270                   62,038                   

Salaries and Benefits:
Regular Salaries 816,825                 797,226                 
Retirement Benefits 170,701                 263,417                 
Uniforms 4,257                     6,181                     
Insurance 149,012                 148,943                 
Payroll Taxes 14,154                   12,325                   
Employee Educational Expense 15,774                   15,111                   

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,170,723$            1,243,203$            

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
11
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2023 2022

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Administrative Expenses:

Board Meetings 9,164$                   8,478$                   
Board/Committee Expenses 1,973                     1,264                     
Conferences and Seminars - Board 9,202                     2,687                     
Dues/ Membership 26,036                   24,873                   
Office Supplies 10,262                   8,487                     
E-Pay Online 5,048                     4,377                     
Communications 24,643                   20,787                   
Printing and Publications 5,256                     5,285                     
Postage and Shipping 10,818                   12,305                   
Utilities 3,378                     2,753                     
Miscellaneous Office Expense 36,943                   10,249                   
Other Professional Services 11,196                   25,392                   
Office Equipment Maintenance 9,907                     7,343                     
Insurance 46,149                   22,918                   
Accounting Services 43,857                   35,995                   
Computer Services 66,369                   52,869                   
Legal Services 46,697                   29,146                   
Engineering Services 43,321                   49,259                   
Bank and Trustee Fees 2,500                     3,781                     
Legal Notices Publication Expense 1,305                     958                        
Public Information -                             1,942                     

Total Administrative Expenses 414,024                 331,148                 

Other Operating Expenses:
Depreciation (Note 4) 370,171                   350,218                 
Amortization (Note 1) (5,636)                      6,163                     
Bad Debt (Note 1) 8,345                       4,909                     

Total Other Operating Expenses 372,880                 361,290                 

Total Operating Expenses 4,267,893              4,493,603              

OPERATING INCOME 450,564$               798,810$               

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Continued

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
12
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2023 2022
NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Investment Earnings 226,753$               29,265$                 
Net Gain (Loss) from Joint Venture (Note 12) (68,731)                    (80,537)                 
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets (9,986)                      -                             
County Tax Apportionment  (Note 1) 94,095                   86,786                   
Miscellaneous Revenues 34,626                   -                             
Interest Expense (82,399)                  (92,584)                 

Total Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses 194,358                 (57,070)                 

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 644,922                 741,740                 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (NOTE 1)

Developmental Impact Fee 20,784                   24,840                   
Amortization on Contributed Capital (16,938)                  (16,938)                 

Total Capital Contributions 3,846                     7,902                     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 648,768                 749,642                 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,891,180            15,141,538            

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 16,539,948$          15,891,180$          

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Continued

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
13
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2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Water, Sewer and Trash Services 4,975,717$         5,308,028$         
Other Cash Receipts 34,626                -                          
Cash Payments to Contract and Water System Services (2,551,813)          (2,575,917)          
Cash Payments to Maintenance and Administration Services (459,673)             (400,964)             
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (1,112,927)          (1,048,601)          

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 885,930              1,282,546           

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
County Tax Apportionment 94,095                86,786                

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 94,095                86,786                

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (1,149,587)          (632,422)             
Capital Contributions 20,784                24,840                
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 7,500                  -                          
Principal Paid on Debt (180,985)             (477,265)             
Interest Paid on Debt (87,253)               (98,157)               

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1,389,541)          (1,183,004)          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Earnings 172,812              22,385                

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 172,812              22,385                

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (236,704)             208,713              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,737,173           8,528,460           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -
END OF YEAR 8,500,469$         8,737,173$         

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
14
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2023 2022

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income 450,564$            798,810$            

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Miscellaneous Revenues 34,626                -                          
Depreciation and Amortization 364,535              356,381              
Bad Debt Expense 8,345                  4,909                  
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts and Other Receivables 257,260              15,615                
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items (96)                      (17,484)               
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory 1,547                  (891)                    
(Increase) Decrease in Net Pension Asset 21,521                (21,521)               
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows - Pension Related Items 16,907                (33,635)               
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (296,766)             (79,122)               
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Payroll, Taxes and Benefits (28,863)               6,968                  
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 8,119                  9,726                  
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability 19,484                (5,352)                 
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Liability 15,637                248,180              
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows - Pension Related Items (2,151)                 (38)                      
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows - OPEB Related Items 15,261                -                          

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS 435,366              483,736              

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 885,930$            1,282,546$         

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted Cash 105,000$            105,000$            
Board Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 8,283,169           8,527,992           
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 112,300              104,181              

Total 8,500,469$         8,737,173$         

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities consisted of the following:
Amortization Related to Long-term Debt (5,636)$               6,163$                
Amortization on Contributed Capital 16,938$              16,938$              

Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
15
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 A) Reporting Entity 
 

 The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, a public agency, was created by election held on November 2, 
1982 as the first such district in Ventura County.  The District began operations December 13, 1982 pursuant to the 
Community Services District Law of the State of California, as amended, with authority under the Government Code, 
Section 61000 et. seq.  The District’s major utility operations include the provision of water, sewer and trash utility 
services. 
 
The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District is a successor district to its first predecessor agency, the Oxnard 
Beach County Water District (“OBCWD”), which was organized on January 28, 1960.  Its inception resulted from the 
merging of three mutual water companies for the purpose of more economically providing water services to the beach 
communities and County of Ventura Channel Islands Harbor facilities.  The District’s immediate predecessor agency, 
the Channel Islands County Water District, succeeded OBCWD in 1973, followed by the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services Districts’ succession by its formation in 1982. 
 
The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District is located on the coastal plain of Ventura County.  The District 
comprises an unincorporated total of 6,630 acres; however, the major portion of this acreage is in a seaward extension to 
the three-mile limit.  The developed portion of the District, which is on the county assessment rolls, lies around the 
Channel Islands Harbor and comprises about 151 acres.  The District is bound on the east by the United States Naval 
Base Ventura County, Port Hueneme, on the north and west by portions of the Cities of Oxnard and Port Hueneme, and 
on the south by the Pacific Ocean. 
 
The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District serves the communities of Hollywood Beach, Hollywood by 
the Sea and Silver Strand.  The District also serves an adjacent incorporated portion of the Channel Islands Harbor, which 
is outside the District’s boundaries, pursuant to existing service agreements with the County of Ventura and the City of 
Oxnard. 
 

B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements 
 
GASB Statements Implemented as of June 30, 2023 
 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 91 
 
In May of 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.  This statement was issued to improve 
financial reporting for certain debt obligations. It allowed entities to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt 
obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.  This Statement achieves those 
objectives by clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation 
is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments 
and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and 
improving required note disclosures.  Statement No. 91 is effective for fiscal years beginning December 15, 2020.  
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, GASB No. 95 delayed the implementation of this Statement by one year for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15, 2021. This statement is required to be implemented in the 2023 fiscal year by 
the District. Currently, this statement has no effect on the financial statements. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

 
 B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements - Continued 
 

GASB Statements Implemented as of June 30, 2023 - Continued 
 

Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 94 
 
In March of 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangements.  The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related 
to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). Statement No. 94 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. This statement is required to be implemented in 
the 2023 fiscal year by the District. Currently, this statement has no effect on the financial statements. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 96 
 
In May of 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This 
statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology 
arrangement (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). Statement No. 96 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. This statement is required to be implemented in 
the 2023 fiscal year by the District. Currently, this statement has no effect on the financial statements. 
 
Pending Accounting Standards  
 
GASB has issued the following statements which impact the District’s financial reporting requirements in the future: 
 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 99 
 
In April of 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by 
addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB 
Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. Statement No. 99 is effective upon 
issuance except for requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs which is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2022, and requirements related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative 
instructions within the scope of Statement No. 53 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023. This 
statement is required to be implemented in the 2024 fiscal year by the District. The District has elected not to early 
implement GASB No. 99 and has not determined its effect on the District’s financial statements. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 100 
 
In June of 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. The primary objective 
of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error 
corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making 
decisions or assessing accountability.  Statement No. 100 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023. 
This statement is required to be implemented in the 2024 fiscal year by the District. The District has elected not to 
early implement GASB No. 100 and has not determined its effect on the District’s financial statements. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

 
 B) Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements - Continued 
 

Pending Accounting Standards - Continued 
 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 101 
 
In June of 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to 
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance 
for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a 
unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. Statement No. 101 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2023. This statement is required to be implemented in the 2025 fiscal year by the 
District. The District has elected not to early implement GASB No. 101 and has not determined its effect on the 
District’s financial statements. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board Statement No. 102 
 
In December of 2023, GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. The objective of this Statement is 
to provide users of government financial statements with essential information about risks related to a government’s 
vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. If a government determines that the criteria for disclosure 
have been met for a concentration or constraint, it should disclose information in the notes to financial statements in 
sufficient detail to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature of the circumstances disclosed and the 
government’s vulnerability to the risk of a substantial impact. This statement is required to be implemented in the 
2025 fiscal year by the District. The District has elected not to early implement GASB No. 102 and has not determined 
its effect on the District’s financial statements. 
 

 C) Basis of Presentation 
 
  The District’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America as they are applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The more significant accounting policies reflected in the financial statements are summarized as follows: 

 
D) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

 
The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs (including 
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. The District financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which 
they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from those revenues and expenses that are non-operating.  
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated by water sales and services while operating expenses pertain 
directly the furnishing of those services. Non-operating revenues and expenses are those revenues and expenses generated 
that are not directly associated with the normal business of supplying water and services. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 E) Use of Estimates 
 
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 F) Budgetary Data 
 

 Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for the District.  Annual operating budgets are 
adopted each fiscal year on the budgetary basis in accordance with existing legal requirements. Budgetary control is 
exercised at the utility enterprise divisional program level. The District did not modify their adopted operating budget for 
the year ended June 30, 2023. 

 
 The encumbrance method of accounting for budget information is not employed by the District. 

 
G) Investments  

 
 As a governmental entity other than an external investment pool in accordance with GASB, the District’s investments are 

stated at fair value except for interest-earning investment contracts (See Notes 2 and 3). 
 
In applying GASB, the District utilized the following methods and assumptions: 
 

1) Fair value is based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date; 

2) The portfolio did not hold investments in any of the following: 
 
 a) Items required to be reported at amortized cost, 
 b) Items in external pools that are not SEC registered, 
 c) Items subject to involuntary participation in an external pool, 
 d) Items associated with a fund other than the fund to which the income is assigned; 
 
3) The gain/loss resulting from valuation will be reported within the revenue account “investment earnings” on 

the Statement of Revenues and Expenses. 
 
In accordance with GASB, for purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash and investments with original maturities 
of 90 days or less are considered cash or cash equivalents. 

 
 H) Accounts Receivable 
 

 The District has established a reserve for doubtful accounts based on the prior three years of bad debts. The amount of 
the reserve for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $5,000 and $5,000, respectively. The Bad Debt expense 
was $8,345 and $4,909 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

  

 

DRAFT COPY – 05/02/2024 
PRELIMINARY & TENATIVE 
for DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
 

 
21 

 
 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 I) Other Receivables and Other Liabilities 
 
 Other receivables include $0 and $248,760 from the City of Oxnard as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. The District and 

the City of Oxnard share a pipeline for wastewater transportation and treatment in which the City of Oxnard reimburses 
the District for the estimated cost for their portion of the use of the pipeline. The agreement was amended in fiscal 
year 2023 and, effective January 2023, the City directly bills the District for the District’s estimated actual costs of the 
shared sewer pipeline. Other liabilities include unearned COVID-19 relief funds of $7,861 and $42,487 as of June 30, 
2023 and 2022.   

 
J) Inventory and Prepaid Items 

 
 Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. 
 
 Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items. The 

cost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. Prepaid items 
include $14,057 for insurance and dues, and $54,510 for water purchases (Port Hueneme Water Agency true-up) as of 
June 30, 2023. Prepaid items include $19,131 for insurance and dues, and $49,340 for water purchases (Port Hueneme 
Water Agency true-up) as of June 30, 2022. 

 
K) Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows 
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. The District only has the following items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
The District has deferred charges on refunding reported in the statements of net position. A deferred charge on 
refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is 
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The District also has deferred 
outflows related to pensions for pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date of the net pension liability, 
and other amounts (see Note 7), which are amortized by an actuarial determined period. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time.  The District has deferred inflows related to pensions and other post-employment benefits 
(OPEB). These amounts (see Notes 7 and 8) are amortized by an actuarial determined period.  

 
 L) Compensated Absences 
 

Employees are entitled to annual leave at a rate of 6.77 hours (1 to 4 years of service), 8.30 hours (5 to 9 years of service) 
and 9.84 hours (10 years or more of services) per pay period, depending on the number of years of service completed.  
The annual maximum accrued leave is limited to 500 hours. All hours over that will be paid out to the employee after the 
pay period in which it was earned. Upon termination, separation, or retirement, each employee is paid for all their annual 
leave hours at the hourly rate then in effect. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the liability is reflected in the line item for accrued payroll, taxes and benefits on the statement of net 
position and the current year allocation has been expensed.  
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

 
M) Bond Discounts and Premiums 
 

The District amortizes bond discounts and premiums using the straight-line method over the term of the related bond 
issue.  The current related bond issue is the 2016 Wastewater Refunding Bond Series. 

 
N) Pensions 
 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, 
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additional to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value. 

 
O) Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s plan 
(OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to lability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used. 

 
Valuation Date   June 30, 2022 
Measurement Date   June 30, 2023 
Measurement Period   July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

 
P) Net Position 

 
GASB requires that the difference between assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of resources be reported 
as net position.  Net position is classified as either net investment in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 
 
Net position classified as net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the net position that has external 
constraints placed on them by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or through 
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet 
the definition of net investment in capital assets or restricted net position. 

 
 Q) County Tax Apportionment 
 

Taxes are considered revenue in the year in which collections are made, as that is when they are both measurable and 
available. 
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 1) REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 
 
 Q) County Tax Apportionment - Continued 
 

The District utilizes the services of Ventura County for the assessment and collection of taxes (special benefit assessments 
and general property taxes). These taxes are collected at the same time and on the same tax rolls as are county, cities, 
school districts and other special district taxes. Assessed valuations are the same for both District and County taxing 
purposes. The District receives an apportionment of the County’s one percent (1%) maximum property tax levy. The 
percentage of tax that the District receives is determined by a formula prepared by the Ventura County Tax Assessor in 
accordance with State law. The valuation of property is determined as of March 1 of each year.  Secured taxes are payable 
in two installments the first is due November 1, and the second due February 1. Such taxes are considered delinquent if 
not paid by December 10 and April 10 immediately following their respective due dates. Taxes on unsecured property 
are due March 1 and become delinquent August 31 and such taxes are levied at the prior years’ secured tax rate.  The 
county wide 1% levy has been pledged to debt service of the District. 
 

R) Contributed Capital 
 

Contributed capital represents cash or utility plant additions contributed to the District by property owners or 
developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or capacity commitment. In accordance with GASB 
Statement 33 all such capital contributions are reflected as revenues.  

 
 S) Reclassifications 
 

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s 
presentation. 

 
 
 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 

The District has defined cash for purposes of the statement of cash flows to include cash on hand, demand deposits and cash 
with the County Treasurer. 
 
The District participates in the County Pool Investment Program with interest being allocated on the basis of deposit in the 
Treasury.  Investment policies and associated risk factors applicable to District monies are those of the County of Ventura 
and are included in the County’s Annual Financial Report. The carrying value and estimated market value of the County of 
Ventura Pool at June 30, 2023, were $4,130,001,484 and $4,091,859,832 respectively and at June 30, 2022, were 
$3,784,920,807 and $3,723,151,281. The District’s share of the Pool at June 30, 2023 and 2022 was approximately 0.002 
percent and 0.215 percent. 

 
The District also participates in the California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (California CLASS) which is 
organized as a Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”) that was established by public agencies in California as a pooled investment 
option. Investments with California CLASS are highly liquid. California CLASS is governed by a Board of Trustees made 
up eligible participants of the program. The Board of Trustees sets overall policy for California CLASS. California CLASS 
offers the option of two accounts. The California CLASS Prime option is a stable $1 net asset value (NAV) local government 
investment pool offering daily liquidity. The other option is California CLASS Enhanced Cash which is a next-day liquidity 
investment option that generates higher yields.  As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District’s investment in California Class is 
$8,153,256 and $0 in the California CLASS Prime account.  The account offers daily liquidity and amounts withdrawn are 
based on the net asset value per share which is currently $1 per share. California CLASS Prime funds have a weighted average 
maturity target portfolio of 60 days or less.  On June 30, 2023, the weighted average maturity was 44 days for California 
CLASS Prime funds.  

 

DRAFT COPY – 05/02/2024 
PRELIMINARY & TENATIVE 
for DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
 

 
24 

 
 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

The District utilized a commercial bank for all operational transactions. The District invests cash with the County Treasurer 
and in California CLASS. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 the carrying amount of the District’s petty cash, deposits and investments 
were $8,500,469 and $8,737,173 and are broken down as follows: 

 
 

 2023  2022 
    
Petty Cash $ 2,100  $ 2,100 
County Treasury  111,650   7,997,999 
California CLASS  8,153,256   - 
Pacific Western Bank  233,463   737,074 
    

 Total $ 8,500,469  $ 8,737,173 

 
 The District has adopted an investment policy, which authorizes the District’s investment in local obligations, obligations of 

the United States Treasury and agencies, the County Pool Investment Program, savings and other investments. The District 
selects its investments based on safety, liquidity and yield. 

 
Cash and Investments are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

 
 

 2023  2022 
Statement of Net Position:    
 Unrestricted Cash  $ 105,000  $ 105,000 
 Board Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents   8,283,169    8,527,992 
 Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents   112,300    104,181 
    
 Total Cash and Investments $ 8,500,469  $ 8,737,173 

 
Cash and investments consist of the following:  

 
 

 2023  2022 
    
Cash on Hand $ 2,100  $ 2,100 
Deposits with Financial Institutions  233,463   737,074 
Ventura County Treasurer’s Pooled Investments  111,650   7,997,999 
California Class Investment Pool  8,153,256   - 
    
 Total Cash and Investments $ 8,500,469  $ 8,737,173 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code (or 
the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of the California 
Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, 
and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are 
governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California 
Government Code or the District’s investment policy. 
 
    Maximum  Maximum 

Authorized  Maximum  Percentage  Investment 
Investment Type  Maturity  Of Portfolio(1)  In One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds  5 years  None  None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations  5 years  None  None 
State Obligations - CA and Others  5 years  None  None 

CA Local Agency Obligations  5 years  None  None 

Federal Agency Securities  5 years  None  None 
Bankers’ Acceptance  180 days  40%  30% 
Commercial Paper  270 days      25%(3)  10% 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit  5 years  30%  10% 

Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit  5 years  20%  None 

Placement Service Deposits and Certificates of Deposit  5 years  30%  None 

Repurchase Agreements  1 year  None  None 

Reverse Repurchase Agreements  92 days  20%  None 

Medium Term Notes  5 years  30%    5% 

Mutual Funds and Money Market Funds  N/A  20%     10%(4) 
Collateralized Bank Deposits  5 years  None  None 
Mortgage Pass Through and Asset-Backed Securities  5 years  20%  5% 
County Pooled Investment Funds  N/A  None  None 
Joint Powers Authority Pool(5)  N/A  None  None 
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  N/A  None  None 
Voluntary Investment Program Fund  N/A  None  None 
Supranational Obligations  5 years  30%  None 
Public Bank Obligations  5 years  None  None 
 
(1) Excluding amounts held by bond trustee that are not subject to California Government Code restrictions. 
(2) No more than 30% of the portfolio may be in Municipal Securities. 
(3) Pooled funds can be 40% of the maximum percentage of the portfolio. 
(4) The 10% limitation does not apply to money market funds. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 

 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
 
Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy.   
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.  One 
of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rates risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and 
longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming 
close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
The District had the following investments: 
 

 2023  2022 
 Amount  Maturity Date  Amount  Maturity Date 
Ventura County Treasurer’s Pooled 
 Investments 

 
$ 111,650 

  
N/A 

  
$ 7,997,999 

  
N/A 

California CLASS  8,153,256     -   
        
 Total $ 8,264,906    $ 7,997,999   

 
 Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.  
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.   
 
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code or the District’s 
investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each investment type. 
 
June 30, 2023 
  Minimum  Exempt  Rating as of Year End 
  Legal  From      Not 
 Investment Type    Rating  Disclosure  AAA  AA  Rated 
            
Ventura County Treasurer’s 
 Pooled Investments 

 
$ 111,650 

  
N/A 

  
$ - 

  
$ 111,650 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

California CLASS  8,153,256     -   8,153,256   -   - 
            
 Total $ 8,264,906    $ -  $ 8,264,906  $ -  $ - 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 

 
June 30, 2022 
  Minimum  Exempt  Rating as of Year End 
  Legal  From      Not 
 Investment Type    Rating  Disclosure  AAA  AA  Rated 
            
Ventura County Treasurer’s 
 Pooled Investments 

 
$ 7,997,999 

  
N/A 

  
$ - 

  
$ 7,997,999 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

            
 Total $ 7,997,999    $ -  $ 7,997,999  $ -  $ - 

 
The investment policy of the District contains no limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the California Government Code.  

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 
stipulated by the Government Code.  The District has no investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, 
mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of the total District’s investments. 
 

 Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government 
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in 
the possession of another party.   
  
The California Government Code and the Entity’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would 
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits:  The 
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local government units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool  held by  depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the 
governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total 
amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first 
trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 
 
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, none of the District’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository 
insurance limits were held in uncollateralized accounts.   

 
 Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agent - Restricted Assets 
 
 Cash and investments held and invested by fiscal agents on behalf of the District are pledged for payment or security of certain 

long-term debt issuances and construction projects.  Fiscal agents are mandated by bond indentures as to the types of 
investments in which debt proceeds can be invested.  The investments predominately consist of Governments securities which 
are held in book entry form by the trustee. 
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 2) CASH AND INVESTMENTS - Continued 
 
 Board Restricted Cash 
 
 Cash is Board restricted for the following: 
 

 2023  2022 
Capital and Unanticipated Repairs and  
 Maintenance 

 
$ 6,614,861  

 
$ 6,624,085 

Rate Stabilization  425,557   403,556 
Reserved for Operations  966,751   911,351 
Debt Service  276,000   589,000 
    

 Total $ 8,283,169  $ 8,527,992 
 
 Restricted Cash 
 
 Cash is restricted for the following: 
 

 2023  2022 
    
Customer Deposits $ 112,300  $ 104,181 
    

 Total $ 112,300  $ 104,181 

 
 
 3) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application, 
provides the framework for measuring fair value.  The framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs 
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value with Level 1 given the highest priority and Level 3 the lowest priority.  
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 
 
 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the organization 

has the ability to access at the measurement date. 
 
 Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly.  Level 2 inputs include the following: 
 

a. Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets. 
b. Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active. 
c. Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for example, interest rates and 

yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, credit 
risks, and default rates).  

d. Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other 
means (market-corroborated inputs). 

 
 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  

 

DRAFT COPY – 05/02/2024 
PRELIMINARY & TENATIVE 
for DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
 

 
29 

 
 3) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - Continued 

 
Fair value of assets measured on a recurring basis are as follows: 
 

  2023 
    

Significant 
  

    Unobservable   
    Inputs   
   Fair Value   (Level 3)  Uncategorized 
Investments:       
 Ventura County Treasurer’s Pooled 
  Investments 

  
$ 111,650 

  
$ - 

  
$ 111,650 

  California CLASS   8,153,256     8,153,256 
       
  Total Investments  $ 8,264,906  $ -  $ 8,264,906 
       
Other Assets:       
 Investment in Water JPA, 
  Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

  
$ 2,665,541 

  
$ 2,665,541 

  
$ - 

       
 Total Other Assets  $ 2,665,541  $ 2,665,541  $ - 

 
 

  2022 
    

Significant 
  

    Unobservable   
    Inputs   
   Fair Value   (Level 3)  Uncategorized 
Investments:       
 Ventura County Treasurer’s Pooled 
  Investments 

  
$ 7,997,999 

  
$ - 

  
$ 7,997,999 

       
  Total Investments  $ 7,997,999  $ -  $ 7,997,999 
       
Other Assets:       
 Investment in Water JPA, 
  Net of Accumulated Depreciation 

  
$ 2,751,210 

  
$ 2,751,210 

  
$ - 

       
 Total Other Assets  $ 2,751,210  $ 2,751,210  $ - 

 
The Ventura County Treasurer’s Pooled Investments and California CLASS external investment pools are exempt under 
GASB No. 72 fair value measurements.  The Investment in Water JPA, Net of Accumulated Depreciation, classified in 
Level 3 is valued using the equity method. See Note 12. 

 
 
 4) CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
 Minor expenditures for renewals and betterment are charged to expense.  Major expenditures for renewals and betterment are 

capitalized.  Costs of assets sold, retired or otherwise disposed of have been eliminated from accounts, and gains or losses on 
disposition are included in operations.  Public domain (infrastructure) fixed assets are capitalized and include water 
distribution systems and sewer collection systems.  Donated land or other donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated 
acquisition value rather than fair market value on the date contributed.  
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 4) CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 

 
The cost of capital assets is depreciated over the estimated lives of the assets on the straight-line method of depreciation 
Estimated useful lives are: 
 

  Category  Life in years 
  
Office Furniture and Equipment 5 to 10 
Mobile Equipment 3 to 5 
Tools and Shop Equipment 10 
Office Building 20 
Water System/Plant 25 to 50 
1911 Act Sewer Lines 40 

 
 A summary of changes in capital assets for the year is as follows: 
 

 2023 
 Beginning      Ending 
 Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance 
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated:        
 Land $ 42,060  $ -  $ -  $ 42,060 
 Construction in Progress  669,117   1,034,227   834,050   869,294 
 Total Capital Assets,         
  Not Depreciated  711,177   1,034,227   834,050   911,354 
 
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: 

       

 Office Furniture and Equipment  110,901   24,185  29,167   105,919 
 Vehicles  175,867   91,176   101,207   165,836 
 Tools and Shop Equipment  455,491   -   167,818   287,673 
 Office Building  109,056   -  62,714   46,342 
 1911 Act Sewer Line  7,626,074   -   -   7,626,074 
 Water Distribution System  4,063,289   834,050   58,270   4,839,069 
  Total Capital Assets, Being         
  Depreciated  12,540,678   949,411   419,176   13,070,913 
 
Less Accumulated Depreciation: 

       

 Office Furniture and Equipment  (100,876)   (9,868)   (29,167)   (81,577) 
 Vehicles  (175,867)  (3,841)   (101,206)   (78,502) 
 Tools and Shop Equipment  (252,716)   (29,883)   (167,262)   (115,337) 
 Office Building  (90,837)   (1,482)   (46,706)   (45,613) 
 1911 Act Sewer Line  (2,594,232)   (182,901)   -   (2,777,133) 
 Water Distribution System  (2,856,073)   (142,196)   (57,348)   (2,940,921) 
        
  Total Accumulated Depreciation  (6,070,601)   (370,171)   (401,689)   (6,039,083) 
 Total Capital Assets, Being        
  Depreciated, Net  6,470,077   579,240   17,487   7,031,830 
        
 Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $ 7,181,254  $ 1,613,467  $ 851,537  $ 7,943,184 
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 4) CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued 
 

 2022 
 Beginning      Ending 
 Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance 
Capital Assets, Not Depreciated:        
 Land $ 42,060  $ -  $ -  $ 42,060 
 Construction in Progress  440,467   228,650   -   669,117 
 Total Capital Assets,         
  Not Depreciated  482,527   228,650   -   711,177 
 
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated: 

       

 Office Furniture and Equipment  110,901   -  -   110,901 
 Vehicles  175,867   -   -   175,867 
 Tools and Shop Equipment  301,996   153,495   -   455,491 
 Office Building  109,056   -  -   109,056 
 1911 Act Sewer Line  7,576,306   49,768   -   7,626,074 
 Water Distribution System  3,862,780   200,509   -   4,063,289 
  Total Capital Assets, Being         
  Depreciated  12,136,906   403,772   -   12,540,678 
 
Less Accumulated Depreciation: 

       

 Office Furniture and Equipment  (88,351)   (12,525)   -   (100,876) 
 Vehicles  (175,867)  -   -   (175,867) 
 Tools and Shop Equipment  (229,063)   (23,653)   -   (252,716) 
 Office Building  (89,332)   (1,505)   -   (90,837) 
 1911 Act Sewer Line  (2,413,542)   (180,690)   -   (2,594,232) 
 Water Distribution System  (2,724,228)   (131,845)   -   (2,856,073) 
        
  Total Accumulated Depreciation  (5,720,383)   (350,218)   -   (6,070,601) 
 Total Capital Assets, Being        
  Depreciated, Net  6,416,523   53,554   -   6,470,077 
        
 Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $ 6,899,050  $ 282,204  $ -  $ 7,181,254 
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 5) LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 The following is a summary of the changes in Long-Term Debt: 
 

  2023 
  Beginning      Ending  Due Within 

Changes in Long-Term Debt  Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance  One Year 
           
2016 Wastewater Refunding Bonds 
 Series 

  
$ 2,080,000 

  
$ - 

  
$ 115,000 

  
$ 1,965,000 

  
$ 120,000 

Premiums on Bonds   111,186   -   8,339   102,847   - 
 Subtotal   2,191,186   -   123,339   2,067,847   120,000 
           

Direct Borrowing - Loan Payable   515,663   -   65,985   449,678   68,393 
Net Pension Liability   -   72,922   53,438   19,484   - 
Net OPEB Liability   248,180   15,637   -   263,817   - 
           
 Total  $ 2,955,029  $ 88,559  $ 242,762  $ 2,800,826  $ 188,393 

 
 

  2022 
  Beginning      Ending  Due Within 

Changes in Long-Term Debt  Balance  Additions  Deletions  Balance  One Year 
           
2012 Water Refunding Bonds Series  $ 303,604  $ -  $ 303,604  $ -  $ - 
2016 Wastewater Refunding Bonds 
 Series 

  
 2,190,000 

  
 - 

  
 110,000 

  
 2,080,000 

  
 115,000 

Premiums on Bonds   119,525   -   8,339   111,186   - 
 Subtotal   2,309,525   -   118,339   2,191,186   115,000 
           

Direct Borrowing - Loan Payable   579,324   -   63,661   515,663   65,985 
Net Pension Liability   5,352   46,689   52,041   -   - 
Net OPEB Liability   -   248,180   -   248,180   - 
           
 Total  $ 3,197,805  $ 294,869  $ 537,645  $ 2,955,029  $ 180,985 

 
 
 Bonds Payable 
 

In September 2016, the District issued $2,605,000 in Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016 to advance refund 
the 2005A Sewer Revenue Certificates of Participation.  The bonds interest rates range from 2% to 4%.  Interest on the bonds 
is payable November 1st and May 1st of each year.  Principal on the bonds is payable in annual installments, ranging from 
$95,000 to $180,000, commencing November 1, 2017 through November 1, 2035. 
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 5) LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued 
 
 Future debt requirements are as follows: 
 

  Wastewater Bond 
Year Ending  Series 2016 

June 30,  Principal  Interest 
     

2024  $ 120,000  $ 63,731 
2025   125,000   58,831 
2026   130,000   53,731 
2027   135,000   48,431 
2028   140,000   42,931 

2029-2033   785,000   134,791 
2034-2036   530,000   23,782 

     
Total  $ 1,965,000  $ 426,228 

  
 Revenues Pledged 
 

The District has pledged a portion of future sewer revenues and a portion of investment earnings to repay the District’s 
Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016.  The District’s Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds are payable 
solely from sewer revenues and a portion of investment earnings. Total principal and interest remaining on the Wastewater 
Revenue Refunding Bonds are $2,391,228, payable through fiscal year 2036.  For the current year, principal and interest 
paid by sewer revenues and investment earnings was $115,000 and $68,431, respectively. 

 
Direct Borrowing - Loan Payable 
 
In August 2018, the District received a loan of $700,000 from the California Special District Association (CSDA) 
Municipal Finance Corporation for a water meter project.  The loan has a 3.4% interest rate with annual payments of 
$84,807 per year for ten years.  In the event of default, all remaining installments, including accrued interest, become 
immediately due and payable if the District does not remedy the event of default within 10 days of written notice.  This 
agreement has no pledged collateral or acceleration clauses. 

 
 

Year Ending  Loan Payable 
June 30,  Principal  Interest 

     
2024  $ 68,393  $ 16,413 
2025   70,890   13,917 
2026   73,477   11,329 
2027   76,159   8,648 
2028   78,939   5,868 
2029   81,820   2,986 

     
Total  $ 449,678  $ 59,161 
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 6) NET POSITION 
 
 Net position consisted of the following: 
 

 2023  2022  
Net Position:     
 Net Investment in Capital Assets:     
 Land and Construction in Progress, Not Being Depreciated $  911,354  $  711,177  
 Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation   7,031,830    6,470,077  
 Capital Related Deferred Outflows:     
 Deferred Charges on Refunding   33,339    36,042  
 Less Capital Related Debt:     
 2016 Wastewater Refunding Bonds Series   (1,965,000)    (2,080,000)  
 Loan Payable   (449,678)    (515,663)  
     
   Subtotal   5,561,845    4,621,633  
 Unrestricted Net Position   10,978,103    11,269,547  
     
  Total Net Position $  16,539,948  $  15,891,180  

 
(1) The bond premiums of the 2016 Wastewater Refunding Bonds series were excluded from the above 

calculation since the premiums were used for non-capital costs (debt issuance costs). 
 
 
 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
 A) General Information about the Pension Plans  
 

Plan Description 
 
The District entered into a retirement contract with CalPERS effective May 5, 2018.  All qualified permanent and 
probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined 
Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  The 
Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk 
pool (all other).  Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous 
pools.  Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement 
No. 68.  Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools.  The 
District sponsors one rate plan (miscellaneous).  Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and 
District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan 
regarding provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 
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 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued 
 
 A) General Information about the Pension Plans - Continued 
 

Benefits Provided 
 
CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to 
plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal 
to one year of fulltime employment.  Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with 
statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.  The 
death benefit is one of the following:  the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 
2W Death Benefit.  The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ 
Retirement Law. 
 
The rate plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized as follows: 
 

  Miscellaneous 
  On or After 
Hire Date  January 1, 2013 
Benefit Formulas  2.0% at 62 
Benefit Vesting Schedule  5 Years Service 
Benefit Payments  Monthly for Life 
Retirement Age  52 - 67+ 
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible Compensation  1.0% - 2.5% 
Required Employee Contribution Rates  6.75% 
Required Employer Contribution Rates  

 

 2023  7.47% 
 2022  7.59% 

 
 

Contributions 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates 
for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following 
notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of 
June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits 
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The 
District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. 
 
The District’s contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $53,828 and $53,438, 
respectively. 
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 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued 
 
 B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

 
As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District’s net pension liability (asset) for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability of the Plan was $19,484 and $(21,521). 
 
The District’s net pension liability (asset) for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability.  The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2022 for the 2023 fiscal year, and the total 
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using standard update procedures.  The net pension liability of the plan 
is measured as of June 30, 2021 for the 2022 fiscal year, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021 
using standard update procedures.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined.  The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 
for the Plan was as follows: 

 
 

   2023     2022 

     
Proportion - June 30, 2022 (0.00113)%  Proportion - June 30, 2021 0.00013% 
Proportion - June 30, 2023 0.00042%  Proportion - June 30, 2022 (0.00113)% 
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00155%  Change - Increase (Decrease) (0.00126)% 

 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District recognized pension expense(credit) of $109,588 and $(7,108), 
respectively. The District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 
 

  Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows 
  of Resources  of Resources 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
Pension contributions subsequent          
   to measurement date  $ 53,828  $ 53,438  $ -  $ - 
Differences between actual and expected 
   experience 

  
  391 

  
  - 

  
  262 

  
  2,413 

Changes in assumptions    1,996   -    -    - 
Change in employer’s proportion and differences  
   between the employer’s contributions and the 
   employer’s proportionate share of contributions 

  
 
  62,745 

  
 
  67,211 

  
 
  - 

  
 
  - 

Net differences between projected and actual 
   earnings on plan investments 

  
  3,569 

  
  18,787 

  
  - 

  
  - 

         
 Total  $ 122,529  $ 139,436  $ 262  $ 2,413 
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 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued 
 

B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - 
Continued 
 
The District reported $53,828 as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024.  Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as 
pension expense as follows: 
 

  Deferred 
Year Ended  Outflows/Inflows 

June 30  of Resources 
   

2024  $ 35,345 
2025    22,497 
2026    8,414 
2027    2,183 

   
Total  $ 68,439 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 and 2020 actuarial valuations were determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 

 2022  2021 
    
Valuation Date  June 30, 2021   June 30, 2020 
Measurement Date  June 30, 2022   June 30, 2021 
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry-Age Normal Cost Method   Entry-Age Normal Cost Method 
Actuarial Assumptions:    
 Discount Rate  6.90%   7.15% 
 Inflation  2.3%   2.5% 
 Salaries Increases  Varies(1)   Varies(1) 

 Mortality Rate Table  CalPERS Membership Data(2)   CalPERS Membership Data(3) 

 Post Retirement Benefit Increase  See Footnote(4)   See Footnote(5) 

 
(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment. 
(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2021 

CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 2001 to 2019. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 
generational mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP-2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on 
this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from November 2021 
that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 
CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 15 
years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more 
details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from 
December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

(4) Contract COLA up to 2.3% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.3% thereafter. 
(5) Contract COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 2.5% thereafter. 
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 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued 

 
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - 

Continued 
 
Change of Assumptions 
 
In the 2022 measurement period, the accounting discount rate changed from 7.15 percent to 6.9 percent and a change 
in inflation from 2.5 percent to 2.3 percent. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2022 and 2021 measurement dates was 6.9% 
and 7.15%.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made 
at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability.  
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 
developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market 
return expectations. For the 2022 measurement period, using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-block approach. The expected 
rate of return was then adjusted to account assumed administrative expenses of 10 Basis points. For the 2021 
measurement period, using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns 
were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach.  
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for 
each fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the 
same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns.  The 
expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for 
assumed administrative expenses. 
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 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued 

 
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - 

Continued 
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return - Continued 
 
The table below reflects the expected real rates of return by asset class. 
 

2022 Measurement Period   
 

Asset Class(a) 

 Assumed Asset 
Allocation 

  
Real Return(a),(b) 

  

       
Global Equity - Cap-weighted   30%   4.54%   
Global Equity - Non-Cap-weighted   12%   3.84%   
Private Equity   13%   7.28%   
Treasury   5%   0.27%   
Mortgage-backed Securities   5%   0.50%   
Investment Grade Corporates   10%   1.56%   
High Yield   5%   2.27%   
Emerging Market Debt   5%   2.48%   
Private Debt   5%   3.57%   
Real Assets   15%   3.21%   
Leverage   (5)%   (0.59)%   
       
 Total   100%     

       
(a) An expected inflation of 2.3% used for this period.    
(b) Figures based on the 2021 Asset Liability Management study. 

 
2021 Measurement Period 

 
Asset Class(1) 

 Assumed Asset 
Allocation 

 Real Return 
Years 1 - 10(2) 

 Real Return 
Years 11+(3) 

       
Public Equity   50.0%   4.8%   5.98% 
Fixed Income   28.0%   1.00%   2.62% 
Inflation Assets   -   0.77%   1.81% 
Private Equity   8.0%   6.30%   7.23% 
Real Assets   13.0%   3.75%   4.93% 
Liquidity   1.0%   -   -0.92% 
       
 Total   100%     

       
(1) In the System’s ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-

term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities. 
(2) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.    
(3) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.    
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 7) CALPERS RETIREMENT PLAN - Continued 

 
B) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - 

Continued 
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the 
discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current 
rate: 

 
 

 2023  2022 
    
1% Decrease  5.90%   6.15% 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 73,577  $ 8,792 
    
Current Discount Rate  6.90%   7.15% 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $  19,483  $ (21,521) 
    
1% Increase  7.90%   8.15% 
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ (25,023)  $ (46,581) 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial 
reports. 
 
Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District reported, in accrued payroll, taxes and benefits, a payable of $118 and $400, 
respectively, for the outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the years ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022. 

 
 
 8) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

Plan Description 
 
The District’s defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan, (District Retiree Healthcare Plan, DRHP), provides 
medical benefits to eligible retired employees. Effective January 1, 2022, the District began sponsoring healthcare coverage 
under the California Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act ("PEMHCA"), commonly referred to as PERS 
Health. PEMHCA provides health insurance through a variety of Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) and Preferred 
Provider Organization (PPO) options. Participation in PEMHCA is financed in part by the District contributing the 
statutory minimum (PEMHCA Minimum) for each covered employee. The statutory minimum is $149 per month for 2022 
and $151 per month for 2023 and will be indexed with medical inflation (CPI) for years 2024 and thereafter. 
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 8) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 

 
Funding Policy 
 
The District offers lifetime PEMHCA coverage to individuals who retire under the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-
Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). 
The employer contribution for each annuitant is the amount necessary to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment (including 
the enrollment of family members) up to a maximum of the PEMHCA Minimum ($149 per month for 2022 and $151 per 
month for 2023). The District also pays PEMHCA an administrative fee of percent-of-premium for all active employees 
and retirees.  
 
Employees Covered 
 
As of June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were covered by the benefit terms 
under the DRHP:  
 

Active employees   8 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits   - 
Total   8 

 
Contributions 
 
Currently, the District is under a pay-as-you-go method under which contributions to the plan are generally made the same 
time and in the same amount as retiree benefits and expenses come due.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the 
District was not required to make any cash contributions. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
The District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net 
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2022 based on the following actuarial methods 
and assumptions: 
 
Actuarial Assumptions   
   
Valuation Date  June 30, 2022 
Valuation of Fiduciary Net Position  No assets held in an irrevocable trust as of the measurement date. 
Actuarial Cost Method  Entry Age, Level Percentage of Pay 
Amortization Method  Closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service 

lives of all employees provided with OPEB. 
Salary Increases  3.00% 
Inflation Rate  3.00% 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate  6.00% for 2022-2023, 5.20 percent for 2024-2069, and 4.50 percent 

for 2070 and later years; Medicare ages: 4.50 percent for all years. 
Pre-retirement Mortality  Pre-retirement Mortality Rates from CalPERS Experience Study

(2000-2019). 
Post-retirement Mortality  Post-retirement Mortality Rates for Health Recipients from CalPERS

Experience Study (2000-2019). 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during the period 
January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022.  

 

DRAFT COPY – 05/02/2024 
PRELIMINARY & TENATIVE 
for DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

63



Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
 

 
42 

 
 8) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 

 
Discount Rate 
 
For OPEB Plans that are not administered through trusts that meet the criteria in Paragraph 4, GASB 75 requires a discount 
rate that is a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa 
or higher. The discount rate used to measure the District’s Total OPEB liability is based on the following information: 
 

 
 

Reporting Date 

  
 

Measurement Date 

 Fidelity GO AA 
20 Years 

Municipal Index 

  
 

Discount Rate 
       

June 30, 2022  June 30, 2022  3.69%  3.69% 
June 30, 2023  June 30, 2023  3.86%  3.86% 

 
Changes in the OPEB Liability  
 
The changes in the net OPEB liability for CBRHP are as follows: 
 
  2023 

  Increase (Decrease) 

  Total OPEB 
Liability 

(a) 

 Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b) 

 Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset) 

(c) = (a) - (b) 
Balance at June 30, 2022       
(Measurement Date June 30, 2022)  $ 248,180  $ -  $ 248,180 
       
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:      
 Service Cost  22,213  -  22,213 
 Interest   9,978  -  9,978 
 Differences between Expected and Actual Experience  -  -  - 
 Changes of Assumptions  (16,554)  -  (16,554) 
 Benefit Payments  -  -  - 
       
  Net Changes  15,637  -  15,637 
       
Balance at June 30, 2023 
(Measurement Date June 30, 2023) 

  
$ 263,817 

  
$ - 

  
$ 263,817 
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 8) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 

 
  2022 

  Increase (Decrease) 

  Total OPEB 
Liability 

(a) 

 Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b) 

 Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset) 

(c) = (a) - (b) 
Balance at January 1, 2022(1)       
(Measurement Date June 30, 2022)  $ 232,941  $ -  $ 232,941 
       
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:      
 Service Cost  10,783  -  10,783 
 Interest   4,456  -  4,456 
 Differences between Expected and Actual Experience  -  -  - 
 Changes of Assumptions  -  -  - 
 Benefit Payments  -  -  - 
       
  Net Changes  15,239  -  15,239 
       
Balance at June 30, 2022 
(Measurement Date June 30, 2022) 

  
$ 248,180 

  
$ - 

  
$ 248,180 

 
(1) The District entered into the plan effective January 1, 2022. This is the estimated beginning balance measured by the 

actuarial valuation as of effective date of the plan. 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage 
point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement periods ended June 30, 2023 and 2022: 
 

 2023  2022 
    
1% Decrease  2.86%   2.69% 
Net OPEB Liability $ 384,064  $ 365,239 
    
Current Discount Rate  3.86%   3.69% 
Net OPEB Liability  $  263,817  $ 248,180 
    
1% Increase  4.86%   4.69% 
Net OPEB Liability $ 188,933  $ 175,738 
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 8) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that are 
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement periods ended June 30, 
2023 and 2022: 
 

 Net OPEB Liability 
 2023  2022 
    
1% Decrease $ 178,982  $ 167,342 
    
Current Healthcare Cost Trend Rates $  263,817  $ 248,180 
    
1% Increase $ 405,384  $ 383,382 

 
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Currently, the City is under a pay-as-you-go method, and the CBRHP has no fiduciary net position. 
 
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in OPEB expense 
systematically over time. 
 
Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs.  The remaining amounts are categorized 
as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. 
 
The recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss. Currently the District does not have any deferred 
outflows or inflows of resources related to OPEB. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense (credit) of $30,898 and $248,180.  
As of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District reported deferred outflows or inflows of resources related 
to OPEB from the following sources:  

 
  Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows 
  of Resources  of Resources 
  2023  2022  2023  2022 
Differences between actual and expected 
   experience 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

  
$ - 

Changes in assumptions    -   -    15,261    - 
         
 Total  $ -  $ -  $ 15,261  $ - 
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 8) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued 

 
  Deferred 

Year Ended  Outflows/Inflows 
June 30  of Resources 

   
2024  $ (1,293) 
2025    (1,293) 
2026    (1,293) 
2027    (1,293) 
2028    (1,293) 

Thereafter    (8,796) 
   

Total  $ (15,261) 

 
 
 9) DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
 
 The District established a retirement plan for all eligible District employees during the year ended June 30, 1986.  All full 

time, classified employees qualify.  The plan is an Internal Revenue Service Code Section 457, Public Employees Deferred 
Compensation Plan.  Contributions by employees are voluntary, and may be in any fixed amount, with modifications available 
at fixed intervals.  The District contributes up to 10% of gross pay, with all contributions being currently funded.  The District 
begins to deposit its contributions to the employee’s annuity account upon successful completion of the employee’s initial six 
(6) month probationary period.  Vesting of the District’s contributions begins at the end of the first year of employment.  
Thirty three and one third percent (33.3%) vests at the end of the first year, sixty-six and two thirds percent (66.6%) vests at 
the end of the second year, and one-hundred percent (100%) or full vesting occurs at the end of the third year of service, as 
measured from the date of initial hire of the employee.  The deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.  Contributions for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 
were $28,368 and $26,879, respectively. 

 
 Participants may select from various investment fund options for the investment of their contributions and matching employer 

contributions.  Employees may also select retirement benefit options ranging from lump sum distributions to life annuities 
upon separation from service. 

 
 The Deferred Compensation Plan is administered by Nationwide Retirement Solutions, Inc. 
 

As a result of legislative changes, all amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with 
those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the 
employee or other beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries, whereas, prior 
to the legislative changes, these amounts were solely the property and rights of the District subject only to the claims of the 
District’s general creditors.  As a result, as of June 30, 1999, the deferred compensation investments are no longer reported in 
the District’s financial statements. 
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10) INCOME TAX 
 
 The District is exempt from income taxes. 
 
 
11) JOINT POWERS AGENCY (ACWAJPIA) 
 
 The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agency Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWAJPIA).  

The District receives the benefits of the pooled insurance risk program, but not as an equity member of the authority.  Total 
insurance payments for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $46,149 and $22,918, respectively. 

 
 
12) PORT HUENEME WATER AGENCY/JOINT VENTURE 
 

In 1994, the CIBCSD entered into a Joint Powers Agency Agreement (JPA) with the City of Port Hueneme (COPH) to create 
the Port Hueneme Water Agency (PHWA).  The JPA was formed in order to develop a subregional Water Quality 
Improvement Program to address the need for area-wide planning, coordination, development, financing, constructions and 
operation of a water desalination plant and the necessary transport facilities to service the water need of CIBCSD, COPH, the 
US Navy installations at the Naval Base Ventura County, Port Hueneme.  The PHWA is responsible to design, construct and 
operate facilities necessary to deliver a combination of ground water and imported water. 
 
Financial statements for the PHWA can be obtained through the COPH. 
 
CIBCSD’s percentage share in PHWA’s cost of the improvements and related liabilities varies from 0% to 86%, based on 
each party’s share of the facilities - overall the total cost of improvements through June 30, 2023 was $11,854,130, of which 
CIBCSD’s share was $2,342,548 and through June 30, 2022 was $12,436,844, of which CIBCSD’s share was $2,457,701. 
CIBCSD’s share in ongoing operating costs vary from 12% to 16% for certain fixed costs; other variable operating costs are 
allocated based on the volume of water delivered to each party. 
 
CIBCSD uses the equity method to account for its share of the JPA according to the joint venture agreement.  The initial 
investment was recorded at cost. 
 
CIBCSD’s share of joint venture’s net income is reported in CIBCSD’s operating statement as a profit or loss in the joint 
venture.  Nonoperating transactions between CIBCSD and the joint venture increase or decrease the equity interest.   
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12) PORT HUENEME WATER AGENCY/JOINT VENTURE - Continued 
 

A summary of the assets, liabilities and results of operations of PHWA are as follows. 
 

 2023  2022 
    
Total Assets $  16,304,808  $  15,519,519 
    
Total Liabilities    2,816,216    1,597,415 
    
Net Position    
 Net Investment in Capital Assets   11,446,720    11,974,913 
 Restricted for Operations   457,707    461,933 
 Unrestricted   1,584,165    1,485,258 
    

Total Net Position $  13,488,592  $  13,922,104 
 

Total Revenues $ 5,758,678  $ 5,343,355 
Total Expenses  (6,192,190)   (5,836,613) 
    
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position $ (433,512)  $ (493,258) 

    
CIBCSD’s report its share of the PHWA as follows:    
 Investment in PHWA $ 2,665,541  $ 2,751,210 
 Profit (Loss) in PHWA Joint Venture $ (68,731)  $ (80,537) 
 Amortization on Contributed Capital $ (16,938)  $ (16,938) 
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Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

CalPERS Pension Plan 
  Last Ten Years* 
As of June 30, 2023 

 
 

        Proportionate Share  Plan Fiduciary 
        of the Net Pension  Net Position as a 
  Proportion of the  Proportionate Share    Liability as a   Percentage of the 

Fiscal  Net Pension  of the Net Pension  
 

 Percentage of   Total Pension 
Year  Liability  Liability (Asset)  Covered Payroll  Covered Payroll  Liability 

           
  2018*  0.00000%  $ -  $ -  N/A  N/A 
  2019*  0.00000%  $ -  $ 91,605  N/A  N/A 
2020  0.00001%  $ 408  $ 603,461  0.07%  97.17% 
2021  0.00013%  $ 5,352  $ 569,126  0.94%  95.12% 
2022  0.00113%  $ (21,521)  $ 673,063  (3.20)%  109.37% 
2023  0.00042%  $ 19,483  $ 704,053  2.77%  95.09% 

 
 
Notes to Schedule: 
 
Benefit Changes.  On May 5, 2018, the District entered into a retirement contract with CalPERS. 
 
Changes in Assumptions.  In 2018 (for the June 30, 2017 measurement period), the discount rate reduced from 7.65% to 
7.15%. In 2023 (for the June 30, 2022 measurement period), the discount rate reduced from 7.15% to 6.9%. 
 
Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position.  The Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is based on the District’s proportionate share of the 
CalPERS Miscellaneous Risk Pool. 
 
 
 
* Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year the District entered into a retirement contract with CalPERS.  For fiscal years 2018 and 

2019, the District has no net pension liability since its proportionate share was not included in the actuarial valuations related 
to those fiscal years.  Future years’ information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 
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Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Schedule of Contributions 

CalPERS Pension Plan 
  Last Ten Years* 

As of June 30, 2023 
 

 
  Contractually  Contributions in       
  Required  Relation to the      

 

  Contribution  Actuarially      Contributions as a 
Fiscal  (Actuarially  Determined  Contribution  

 
 Percentage of 

Year  Determined)  Contribution  Deficiency (Excess)  Covered Payroll  Covered Payroll 
           

2018  $ 5,985  $ (5,985)  $ -  $ 91,605  6.53% 
2019  $ 43,807  $ (43,807)  $ -  $ 603,461  7.26% 
2020  $ 39,754  $ (39,754)  $ -  $ 569,126  6.99% 
2021  $ 52,041  $ (52,041)  $ -  $ 673,063  7.73% 
2022  $ 53,438  $ (53,438)  $ -  $ 704,053  7.59% 
2023  $ 53,828  $ (53,828)  $ -  $ 720,585  7.47% 

 
 
 
* Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year the District entered into a retirement contract with CalPERS.  Future years’ information 

will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 
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Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios  

For the Measurement Periods Ended June 30, 
 

 
 

Measurement Period 2022  2023       

Total OPEB Liability 
         

 Service Cost $ 10,783  $ 22,213       
 Interest on the Total OPEB Liability  4,456   9,978       
 Actual and Expected Experience Difference  -   -       
 Changes in Assumptions  -   (16,554)       
 Changes in Benefit Terms  -   -       
 Benefit Payments  -   -       
          
 Net Change in Total OPEB Liability  15,239   15,637       
 Total OPEB Liability - Beginning(1)  232,941   248,180       

 Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) $ 248,180 
 

$ 263,817 
 

 
 

 
 

 
          
Plan Fiduciary Net Position          
 Contributions - Employer $ -  $ -       
 Net Investment Income  -   -       
 Benefit Payments  -   -       
 Administrative Expense  -   -       
          
 Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position  -   -       
 Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning  -   -       

 Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) $ - 
 

$ - 
 

 
 

 
 

 
          
 Net OPEB Liability (Asset) -  
  Ending (a)-(b) 

 
$ 248,180 

  
$ 263,817 

      

          
 Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage  
 of the Total OPEB Liability 

 
 0% 

  
  0% 

      

 Covered-employee Payroll(2) $ 789,608  $ 854,919       
 Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of  
  Covered-employee Payroll(2) 

 
 31.43% 

  
  30.86% 

      

 
 
Notes to Schedule: 
 
(1) The District began sponsoring healthcare coverage under the California Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act 

("PEMHCA") effective January 1, 2022.  The beginning balance for the 2022 fiscal year total OPEB liability was measured 
as of January 1, 2022 by the actuary.   

 
(2) Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.  Future years’ information 

will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available. 
 
(3) Contributions are determined by an actuarial valuation based on eligible participants’ estimated medical benefits.  Currently, no 

amounts have been contributed to a trust requiring an actuarial valuation. 
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING REVENUES
Water Revenue 2,316,000$           2,026,885$           (289,115)$            
Sewer Revenue 1,520,000             1,357,582             (162,418)              
Sewer Revenue - Oxnard 560,000                497,520                (62,480)                
Trash Revenue 793,000                836,470                43,470                  

Total Operating Revenues 5,189,000             4,718,457             (470,543)              

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water System Expenses:                             

PHWA Water Expense 850,000                805,104                44,896                  
Water Samples 16,000                  14,137                  1,863                   
SDHS Annual Admin. Fee 18,000                  18,582                  (582)                     
Cross Connect Contract Charges 2,600                   2,650                   (50)                       
Repairs and Maintenance - Distribution 130,000                143,345                (13,345)                
Water Quality Report 1,500                   -                           1,500                   
Telemetry 10,600                  10,422                  178                      

                            
Total Water System Expenses 1,028,700             994,240                34,460                  

Sewer System Expenses:                             
Waste Water Transportation - Oxnard 660,000                506,089                153,911                
Operations and Maintenance 109,000                95,673                  13,327                  
Telemetry 35,000                  32,021                  2,979                   
Power 29,000                  23,881                  5,119                   

                            
Total Sewer System Expenses 833,000                657,664                175,336                

Trash Expenses:
Trash Services 615,000                606,092                8,908                   

Total Trash Expenses 615,000                606,092                8,908                   

Maintenance Expenses:
Vehicle Expenses 12,000                  12,686                  (686)                     
Building Security 1,800                   1,671                   129                      
Building Maintenance 17,000                  7,037                   9,963                   
Sign and Banner Expense 1,500                   1,036                   464                      
Public Landscape Project 5,200                   4,099                   1,101                   
Employee Workplace Safety 5,000                   2,786                   2,214                   
Gasoline Expenses 20,000                  22,955                  (2,955)                  
Emergency Preparedness Expense 1,500                   -                           1,500                   

Total Maintenance Expenses 64,000$                52,270$                11,730$                

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - All Activities
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Salaries and Benefits:

Regular Salaries 769,000$              816,825$              (47,825)$              
Retirement Benefits 104,000                170,701                (66,701)                
Uniforms 5,500                   4,257                   1,243                   
Group Insurance 157,000                135,548                21,452                  
Worker's Compensation Insurance 13,500                  13,464                  36                        
Payroll Taxes 14,000                  14,154                  (154)                     
Employee Educational Expense 14,000                  15,774                  (1,774)                  

Total Salaries and Benefits 1,077,000             1,170,723             (93,723)                

Administrative Expenses:
Regular Board Payments 10,000                  7,225                   2,775                   
Special Board Meetings 3,000                   1,939                   1,061                   
Board/Committee Expenses 2,000                   1,973                   27                        
Conferences and Seminars - Board 5,000                   1,013                   3,987                   
Board Travel and Lodging 8,500                   8,189                   311                      
Dues/Membership - District 27,000                  26,036                  964                      
Office Supplies 8,000                   10,262                  (2,262)                  
E-Pay Online 6,000                   5,048                   952                      
Communications 25,000                  24,643                  357                      
Printing and Publications 6,000                   5,256                   744                      
Postage and Shipping 12,000                  10,818                  1,182                   
Utilities 3,800                   3,378                   422                      
Miscellaneous Office Expense 16,400                  36,943                  (20,543)                
Other Professional Services 10,000                  11,196                  (1,196)                  
Office Equipment Maintenance 7,000                   9,907                   (2,907)                  
Equipment Purchases 8,000                   -                           8,000                   
Insurance 37,000                  46,149                  (9,149)                  
Accounting Services 50,000                  43,857                  6,143                   
Computer Services 47,000                  66,369                  (19,369)                
Legal Services 60,000                  46,697                  13,303                  
Engineering Services 75,000                  43,321                  31,679                  
Bank and Trustee Fees 4,000                   2,500                   1,500                   
Legal Notices Publication Expense 7,000                   1,305                   5,695                   
Public Information Expense 10,000                  -                           10,000                  

Total Administrative Expenses 447,700$              414,024$              33,676$                

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - All Activities - Continued
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Other Operating Expenses:

Depreciation -$                         370,171$              (370,171)$            
Amortization -                           (5,636)                  5,636                   
Bad Debt -                           8,345                   (8,345)                  

Total Other Operating Expenses -                           372,880                (372,880)              

Total Operating Expenses 4,065,400             4,267,893             (202,493)              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,123,600             450,564                (673,036)              

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Nonoperating Revenue:

Investment Earnings 90,000                  226,753                136,753                
Net Gain (Loss) from Joint Venture -                           (68,731)                (68,731)                
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets -                           (9,986)                  (9,986)                  
County Tax Apportionment 105,000                94,095                  (10,905)                
Miscellaneous Revenues -                           34,626                  34,626                  

Total Nonoperating Revenues 195,000                276,757                81,757                  

Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest Expense 126,000                82,399                  43,601                  

Total Nonoperating Expenses 126,000                82,399                  43,601                  
 

Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 69,000                  194,358                125,358                
                            

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 1,192,600$           644,922$              (547,678)$            

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - All Activities - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING REVENUES
Water Revenue 2,316,000$           2,026,885$           (289,115)$            

Total Operating Revenues 2,316,000             2,026,885             (289,115)              

OPERATING EXPENSES
Water System Expenses:                             

PHWA Water Expense 850,000                805,104                44,896                  
Water Samples 16,000                  14,137                  1,863                   
SDHS Annual Admin. Fee 18,000                  18,582                  (582)                     
Cross Connect Contract Charges 2,600                   2,650                   (50)                       
Repairs and Maintenance - Distribution 130,000                143,345                (13,345)                
Water Quality Report 1,500                   -                           1,500                   
Telemetry 10,600                  10,422                  178                      

                            
Total Water System Expenses 1,028,700             994,240                34,460                  

Maintenance Expenses:
Vehicle Expenses 5,160                   5,455                   (295)                     
Building Security 594                      552                      42                        
Building Maintenance 5,610                   2,322                   3,288                   
Sign and Banner Expense 495                      342                      153                      
Employee Workplace Safety 2,150                   1,198                   952                      
Gasoline Expenses 8,600                   9,870                   (1,270)                  

Total Maintenance Expenses 22,609                  19,739                  2,870                   

Salaries and Benefits:
Regular Salaries 299,910                318,561                (18,651)                
Retirement Benefits 40,560                  66,574                  (26,014)                
Uniforms 2,365                   1,831                   534                      
Group Insurance 61,230                  52,864                  8,366                   
Worker's Compensation Insurance 5,265                   5,251                   14                        
Payroll Taxes 5,460                   5,520                   (60)                       
Employee Educational Expense 5,460                   6,152                   (692)                     

Total Salaries and Benefits 420,250$              456,753$              (36,503)$              

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Water
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Administrative Expenses:

Regular Board Payments 3,900$                  2,818$                  1,082$                  
Special Board Meetings 1,170                   756                      414                      
Board/Committee Expenses 780                      769                      11                        
Conferences and Seminars - Board 1,950                   395                      1,555                   
Board Travel and Lodging 3,315                   3,194                   121                      
Dues/Membership - District 10,182                  9,894                   288                      
Office Supplies 2,640                   3,387                   (747)                     
E-Pay Online 2,460                   2,070                   390                      
Communications 8,250                   8,132                   118                      
Printing and Publications 1,980                   1,734                   246                      
Postage and Shipping 3,960                   3,570                   390                      
Utilities 1,254                   1,115                   139                      
Miscellaneous Office Expense 6,664                   15,147                  (8,483)                  
Other Professional Services 4,100                   4,590                   (490)                     
Office Equipment Maintenance 2,310                   3,269                   (959)                     
Equipment Purchases 2,640                   -                           2,640                   
Insurance 15,170                  18,921                  (3,751)                  
Accounting Services 20,500                  17,981                  2,519                   
Computer Services 19,270                  27,212                  (7,942)                  
Legal Services 36,400                  28,485                  7,915                   
Engineering Services 30,750                  17,762                  12,988                  
Bank and Trustee Fees 1,640                   1,025                   615                      
Legal Notices Publication Expense 2,310                   431                      1,879                   
Public Information Expense 3,300                   -                           3,300                   

Total Administrative Expenses 186,895                172,657                14,238                  

Other Operating Expenses:
Depreciation -                           188,787                (188,787)              
Bad Debt -                           2,837                   (2,837)                  

Total Other Operating Expenses -                           191,624                (191,624)              

Total Operating Expenses 1,658,454             1,835,013             (176,559)              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 657,546$              191,872$              (465,674)$            

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Water - Continued
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Nonoperating Revenues:

Investment Earnings 31,500$                79,364$                47,864$                
Net Gain (Loss) from Joint Venture -                           (68,731)                (68,731)                
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets -                           (5,092)                  (5,092)                  
County Tax Apportionment 2,500                   -                           (2,500)                  
Miscellaneous Revenues -                           17,104                  17,104

Total Nonoperating Revenues 34,000                  22,645                  (11,355)                

Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest Expense 19,000                  14,734                  4,266

Total Nonoperating Expenses 19,000                  14,734                  4,266                   
 

Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 15,000                  7,911                   (7,089)                  
                            

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 672,546$              199,783$              (472,763)$            

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Water - Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING REVENUES
Sewer Revenue 1,520,000$           1,357,582$           (162,418)$             
Sewer Revenue - Oxnard 560,000                497,520                (62,480)                 

Total Operating Revenues 2,080,000             1,855,102             (224,898)               

OPERATING EXPENSES
Sewer System Expense:                              

Waste Water Transportation - Oxnard 660,000                506,089                153,911                
Operations and Maintenance 109,000                95,673                  13,327                  
Telemetry 35,000                  32,021                  2,979                    
Power 29,000                  23,881                  5,119                    

                             
Total Sewer System Expenses 833,000                657,664                175,336                

                             
Maintenance Expenses:

Vehicle Expenses 4,920                    5,201                   (281)                     
Building Security 612                       568                      44                         
Building Maintenance 5,780                    2,393                   3,387                    
Sign and Banner Expense 510                       352                      158                       
Employee Workplace Safety 2,050                    1,142                   908                       
Gasoline Expenses 8,200                    9,412                   (1,212)                  

Total Maintenance Expenses 22,072                  19,068                  3,004                    

Salaries and Benefits:
Regular Salaries 307,600                326,730                (19,130)                 
Retirement Benefits 41,600                  68,280                  (26,680)                 
Uniforms 2,255                    1,745                   510                       
Group Insurance 62,800                  54,219                  8,581                    
Worker's Compensation Insurance 5,400                    5,386                   14                         
Payroll Taxes 5,600                    5,662                   (62)                       
Employee Educational Expense 5,600                    6,310                   (710)                     

Total Salaries and Benefits 430,855$              468,332$              (37,477)$               

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Wastewater
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Administrative Expenses:

Regular Board Payments 4,000$                  2,889$                  1,111$                  
Special Board Meetings 1,200                    776                      424                       
Board/Committee Expenses 800                       790                      10                         
Conferences and Seminars - Board 2,000                    406                      1,594                    
Board Travel and Lodging 3,400                    3,275                   125                       
Dues/Membership - District 10,781                  10,414                  367                       
Office Supplies 2,720                    3,489                   (769)                     
E-Pay Online 2,640                    2,221                   419                       
Communications 8,500                    8,379                   121                       
Printing and Publications 2,040                    1,788                   252                       
Postage and Shipping 4,080                    3,678                   402                       
Utilities 1,292                    1,148                   144                       
Miscellaneous Office Expense 7,096                    15,885                  (8,789)                  
Other Professional Services 4,400                    4,927                   (527)                     
Office Equipment Maintenance 2,380                    3,368                   (988)                     
Equipment Purchases 2,720                    -                           2,720                    
Insurance 16,280                  20,306                  (4,026)                  
Accounting Services 22,000                  19,297                  2,703                    
Computer Services 20,680                  29,202                  (8,522)                  
Legal Services 17,600                  13,542                  4,058                    
Engineering Services 33,000                  19,061                  13,939                  
Bank and Trustee Fees 1,760                    1,100                   660                       
Legal Notices Publication Expense 2,380                    443                      1,937                    
Public Information Expense 3,400                    -                           3,400                    

Total Administrative Expenses 177,149                166,384                10,765                  

Other Operating Expenses:
Depreciation -                           170,279                (170,279)               
Amortization -                           (5,636)                  5,636                    
Bad Debt -                           2,754                   (2,754)                  

Total Other Operating Expenses -                           167,397                (167,397)               

Total Operating Expenses 1,463,076             1,478,845             (15,769)                 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 616,924$              376,257$              (240,667)$             

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Wastewater - Continued
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Nonoperating Revenues:

Investment Earnings 49,500$                124,714$              75,214$                
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets -                           (4,594)                  (4,594)                  
County Tax Apportionment 2,500                    -                           (2,500)                  
Miscellaneous Revenues -                           17,522                  17,522                  

Total Nonoperating Revenues 52,000                  137,642                85,642                  

Nonoperating Expenses:
Interest Expense 107,000                67,665                  39,335                  

Total Nonoperating Expenses 107,000                67,665                  39,335                  
 

Total Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses (55,000)                 69,977                  124,977                
                             

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 561,924$              446,234$              (115,690)$             

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Wastewater - Continued
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING REVENUES
Trash Revenue 793,000$              836,470$              43,470$                

Total Operating Revenues 793,000                836,470                43,470                  

OPERATING EXPENSES
Trash Expense:                              

Trash Service 615,000                606,092                8,908                    
                             

Total Trash Expense 615,000                606,092                8,908                    
                             

Maintenance Expenses:
Vehicle Expenses 1,680                    1,776                    (96)                       
Building Security 594                       551                       43                         
Building Maintenance 5,610                    2,322                    3,288                    
Sign and Banner Expense 495                       342                       153                       
Employee Workplace Safety 700                       390                       310                       
Gasoline Expenses 2,800                    3,214                    (414)                     

Total Maintenance Expenses 11,879                  8,595                    3,284                    

Salaries and Benefits:
Regular Salaries 146,110                155,197                (9,087)                  
Retirement Benefits 19,760                  32,433                  (12,673)                
Uniforms 770                       596                       174                       
Group Insurance 29,830                  25,754                  4,076                    
Worker's Compensation Insurance 2,565                    2,558                    7                           
Payroll Taxes 2,660                    2,689                    (29)                       
Employee Educational Expense 2,660                    2,997                    (337)                     

Total Salaries and Benefits 204,355                222,224                (17,869)                

Administrative Expenses:
Regular Board Payments 1,900$                  1,373$                  527$                     
Special Board Meetings 570                       368                       202                       
Board/Committee Expenses 380                       375                       5                           
Conferences and Seminars - Board 950                       192                       758                       
Board Travel and Lodging 1,615                    1,556                    59                         
Dues/Membership - District 5,809                    5,468                    341                       
Office Supplies 2,640                    3,386                    (746)                     
E-Pay Online 900                       757                       143                       

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Solid Waste Disposal
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
Administrative Expenses: (Continued)

Communications 8,250$                  8,132$                  118$                     
Printing and Publications 1,980                    1,734                    246                       
Postage and Shipping 3,960                    3,570                    390                       
Utilities 1,254                    1,115                    139                       
Miscellaneous Office Expense 2,580                    5,911                    (3,331)                  
Other Professional Services 1,500                    1,679                    (179)                     
Office Equipment Maintenance 2,310                    3,270                    (960)                     
Equipment Purchases 2,640                    -                           2,640                    
Insurance 5,550                    6,922                    (1,372)                  
Accounting Services 7,500                    6,579                    921                       
Computer Services 7,050                    9,955                    (2,905)                  
Legal Services 6,000                    4,670                    1,330                    
Engineering Services 11,250                  6,498                    4,752                    
Bank and Trustee Fees 600                       375                       225                       
Legal Notices Publication Expense 2,310                    431                       1,879                    
Public Information Expense 3,300                    -                           3,300                    

Total Administrative Expenses 82,798                  74,316                  8,482                    

Other Operating Expenses:
Depreciation -                           11,105                  (11,105)                
Bad Debt -                           2,754                    (2,754)                  

Total Other Operating Expenses -                           13,859                  (13,859)                

Total Operating Expenses 914,032                925,086                (11,054)                

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (121,032)              (88,616)                32,416                  

Nonoperating Revenues:
Investment Earnings 9,000                    22,675                  13,675                  
Net Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets -                           (300)                     (300)                     
County Tax Apportionment 2,500                    -                           (2,500)                  

Total Nonoperating Revenues 11,500                  22,375                  10,875                  
                             

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS (109,532)$            (66,241)$              43,291$                

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Solid Waste Disposal - Continued
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)

OPERATING REVENUES
-$                          -$                          -$                          

Total Operating Revenues -                            -                            -                            

OPERATING EXPENSES
Maintenance Expenses:

Vehicle Expenses 240                       254                       (14)                        
Public Landscape Project 5,200                    4,099                    1,101                    
Employee Workplace Safety 100                       56                         44                         
Gasoline Expenses 400                       459                       (59)                        
Emergency Preparedness Expense 1,500                    -                            1,500                    

Total Maintenance Expenses 7,440                    4,868                    2,572                    

Salaries and Benefits:
Regular Salaries 15,380                  16,337                  (957)                      
Retirement Benefits 2,080                    3,414                    (1,334)                   
Uniforms 110                       85                         25                         
Group Insurance 3,140                    2,711                    429                       
Worker's Compensation Insurance 270                       269                       1                           
Payroll Taxes 280                       283                       (3)                          
Employee Educational Expense 280                       315                       (35)                        

Total Salaries and Benefits 21,540                  23,414                  (1,874)                   

Administrative Expenses:
Regular Board Payments 200                       145                       55                         
Special Board Meetings 60                         39                         21                         
Board/Committee Expenses 40                         39                         1                           
Conferences and Seminars - Board 100                       20                         80                         
Board Travel and Lodging 170                       164                       6                           
Dues/Membership - District 228                       260                       (32)                        
Miscellaneous Office Expense 60                         -                            60                         

Total Administrative Expenses 858                       667                       191                       

Other Operating Expenses:
Depreciation -                            -                            -                            

Total Other Operating Expenses -                            -                            -                            

Total Operating Expenses 29,838                  28,949                  889                       

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (29,838)$               (28,949)$               889$                     

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Community Service
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Original Variance
and Positive

Final Budget Actual (Negative)
NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Nonoperating Revenue:
County Tax Apportionment 97,500$                94,095$                (3,405)$                 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 97,500                  94,095                  (3,405)                   
                             

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 67,662$                65,146$                (2,516)$                 

Year Ended June 30, 2023
Schedule of Revenues and Expenses - Budget to Actual - Community Service - Continued

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District
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Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Channel Islands Beach Community 
   Services District 
Oxnard, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, the financial statements of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (the “District”), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated _____ __, 2024. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements 
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 
Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.   
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
_____ __, 2024 
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______ __, 2024 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Channel Islands Beach Community 
   Services District 
Oxnard, CA 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District (the “District”) for the year 
ended June 30, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the 
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated December 15, 
2023. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Matters 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies 
used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 1B to the financial statements, 
the District changed accounting policies related to leases and other matters by adopting Statement of Governmental 
Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public 
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, and No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements in fiscal year 2023. These statements had no significant impact on the financial statements. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management’s 
knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial 
statements were:  
 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments is based on information provided by financial institutions. 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the fair value of investments in determining that it is 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
Management’s estimate of capital assets depreciation is based on historical estimates of each capitalized item’s useful 
life.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the capital assets depreciation in determining 
that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the investment in the Port Hueneme Water Agency is based on a percentage from 
financial information provided by the Agency.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
investment in the Port Hueneme Water Agency in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
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Management's estimate of debt related amortizations (premiums and on refunding) are based on the terms and 
amounts included in the debt documents.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the debt 
related amortizations in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related pension deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
are based on an actuarial valuation and pension contributions made during the year.  We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability and related pension deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of net other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability and related OPEB deferred outflows 
and inflows of resources are based on an actuarial valuation and OPEB contributions made during the year. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net OPEB liability and related deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.  The 
most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 
 

The disclosure of the fair value of investments in Notes 2 and 3 to the financial statements represents amounts 
susceptible to market fluctuation. 
 
The disclosure of capital assets in Note 4 to the financial statements is based on historical information which could 
differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item. 
 
The disclosure of the Port Hueneme Water Agency/Joint Venture in Note 12 to the financial statements is based on 
financial information provided by the agency which could differ from actual results. 
 
The disclosure of debt related amortizations (premiums and on refundings) in Notes 1.K, 1.M, and 5 to the financial 
statements are based on the terms and amounts included in the related debt documents which could differ from actual 
results. 
 
The disclosure of the employees’ retirement, net pension liability and related pension deferred outflows and inflows 
of resources in Notes 1.K, 1.N and 7 to the financial statements represents management’s estimate based on an 
actuarial valuation and pension contributions made during the year. Actual results could differ depending on the key 
factors and assumptions used for the actuarial valuation. 
 
The disclosure of other postemployment benefits and the net OPEB liability and related OPEB deferred outflows 
and inflows of resources in Notes 1.K, 1.O and 8 to the financial statements represents management's estimate based 
on an actuarial valuation and OPEB contributions made during the year. Actual results could differ depending on 
the key factors and assumptions used for the actuarial valuation. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. However, the 
audit was delayed in waiting for financial information from the Port Hueneme Water Agency and the availability of the outside 
financial consulting firm. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those 
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements.  The following material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were corrected by management:  
Reversal of a $248,760 prior year other receivable from the City of Oxnard.   
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated 
______ __, 2024. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, similar to 
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the 
District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of 
our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary section which 
are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the supplemental information section, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. 
With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information 
complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not 
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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As part of the audit, we assisted with the preparation of the financial statements and related notes and the calculation of the 
investment in the Port Hueneme Water Agency.  However, these services, does not constitute an audit under Government 
Auditing Standards and are considered nonaudit services.  Management has reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for 
the results of these services. 
 
Restrictions on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of the District and is 
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
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Board of Directors: 
 
KRISTINA BREWER, President 
MICHAEL LEBOW, Vice President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

Member of: Association of California Water Agencies · ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority · Association of Water Agencies 
of Ventura County · Ventura County Special Districts Association · Ventura Regional Sanitation District 

Regular Board Meeting, May 14, 2024  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    CJ Dillon, Office Manager  
Subject:    Professional Services Agreement between Channel Islands Beach CSD 

and Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation for Financial Auditing 
Services 

Item:    D-2 
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
  

1. Authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with Brown Armstrong 
for a 3-year term for financial auditing for an amount not to exceed $75,000. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  There is sufficient funding in line item 5520 (Accounting Services) of the 
Operating Budget to cover these costs. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
In 2001, the District contracted Teaman, Ramirez and Smith as our auditors. Through the years 
we have worked with many different field staff and partners. Fiscal year 2022-2023 will be their 
last year of government auditing due to shortages of CPA’s working in that field.  The District 
reached out to 13 auditing firms and received four proposals.  
  
DISCUSSION:   
Of the four proposals, Brown Armstrong came highly recommended by the District’s CPA firm, 
Teaman, Ramirez and Smith, and other agencies we contacted. We are familiar with the firm from 
their work for PHWA. Although we will be sad to lose our current auditors, we feel Brown 
Armstrong will be a good fit for our District.  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Professional Service Agreement Brown Armstrong 
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

between 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

and 

BROWN ARMSTRONG ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 

for 

Financial Audit Services 

 

The Channel Islands Beach Community Services District, herein "DISTRICT", and 

Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation, herein "CONSULTANT", agree as follows: 

 

SECTION 1 - PURPOSE 

Under this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall provide financial audit services for 

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024; June 30, 2025; and June 30, 2026. 

 

SECTION 2 - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 The CONSULTANT shall, in good workmanlike and professional manner and at its 

own expense, furnish all of the technical, administrative, professional and other labor, all 

supplies and materials, equipment, printing, vehicles, transportation, office space and 

facilities necessary to perform and complete the work and provide the services as set 

forth in Exhibit "A" of this Agreement. 

  

SECTION 3 - TERM 

 The term of this Agreement shall extend until December 31, 2026.  

 

SECTION 4 - ACCEPTANCE 

 This Agreement constitutes the DISTRICT’S offer to the CONSULTANT. Unless 

the CONSULTANT notifies the DISTRICT, in writing to the contrary, the commencement 

of performance required by this offer shall be conclusive evidence of the CONSULTANT’S 

approval of, and consent to the terms and conditions of this Agreement herein contained. 

 

SECTION 5 - TERMINATION 

 (a)  The DISTRICT may terminate or cancel this Agreement, in whole or in part, 

without liability to the DISTRICT, if CONSULTANT fails to perform in accordance with the 

requirements of Section 2 – Scope of Services of this Agreement, or in the event of a 

substantial breach of any of the other terms or conditions hereof. 
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 (b)  The DISTRICT may also terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, even 

though CONSULTANT is not in default hereunder and no breach hereof has occurred, by 

notice in writing at any time. Such notice shall state the extent and effective date of 

termination and upon the receipt by CONSULTANT of such notice, CONSULTANT will, 

as and to the extent prescribed by the DISTRICT, stop work under the Agreement and 

placement of further purchase orders or subcontracts hereunder, terminate work under 

purchase order and subcontracts outstanding hereunder, and take any necessary action 

to protect property in the CONSULTANT’S possession in which the DISTRICT, has or 

may acquire an interest. 

  

SECTION 6 – AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION 

 The Project Manager is the DISTRICT’S designated representative responsible for 

the administration of this Agreement. The Project Manager for this Agreement is: 

 

 Pete Martinez, General Manager 

 353 Santa Monica Dr 

 Oxnard, CA 93035 

 (805) 985-6021 

 pmartinez@cibcsd.com 

 

 

SECTION 7 - CONSIDERATION 

 The DISTRICT shall compensate the CONSULTANT on a time-and-material basis 

at the rates and in the amounts shown in Exhibit "A". Total payments shall not exceed 

Seventy-Five Thousand ($75,000) dollars.  

 

SECTION 8 - BILLING 

 (a) CONSULTANT’S invoices shall be submitted on a monthly basis for the 

previous month’s services.  

 (b) CONSULTANT shall submit an itemized invoice that includes: 

  (1) Date or period of service.  

  (2) A complete description of the services performed. 

  (3) DISTRICT’S project name. 

  (4) The name of the DISTRICT’S Project Manager. 

  (5) CONSULTANT’S remittance address. 
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  (6) Name and phone number of CONSULTANT’S accounts receivable 

representative. 

 (c) When applicable, CONSULTANT’S invoice shall be accompanied by 

support documentation sufficient to validate the charges for each invoice item. 

 (d) CONSULTANT shall submit invoices to the following address: 

   

  Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

  Attn: Accounts Payable 

  353 Santa Monica Drive 

  Oxnard, CA 93035 

 

 (e) Incomplete invoices will be returned to the CONSULTANT. 

 (f) DISTRICT’S payment terms are Net 30 days after receipt of invoice.  

 

SECTION 9 - NOTICES 

 Notices required or permitted shall be given by personal delivery or by first class 

mail, postage prepaid, or facsimile transmission. 

 

 To:   CONSULTANT 

  Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation 

  Brooke Baird, CPA/Partner 

  4200 Truxtun Avenue, Suite 300 

  Bakersfield, California 93309 

  

 To:  DISTRICT 

  Channel Islands Beach Community Services District 

  Attn: Pete Martinez, General Manager 

  353 Santa Monica Drive 

  Oxnard, CA 93035 

   

Phone: (805) 985-6021 
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SECTION 10 - OWNERSHIP OF DATA, REPORTS, AND DOCUMENTS 

 The CONSULTANT shall deliver to the General Manager notes of surveys made, 

all reports of tests made, studies, reports, plans, a copy of electronic and digital files, and 

other materials and documents which shall be the property of the DISTRICT. The 

CONSULTANT is released from responsibility to third parties for the use by DISTRICT of 

data, reports, and documents on other projects. The CONSULTANT may retain copies of 

such documents for its own use. The DISTRICT may use or reuse the materials prepared 

by CONSULTANT without additional compensation to CONSULTANT. 

 

SECTION 11 - CONFIDENTIALITY 

 Except as required by law, CONSULTANT will not disclose or cause their 

respective officers, directors, employees, representatives, agents, advisors, or 

subconsultants to disclose or use any of the content of negotiations or Confidential 

Information furnished, or otherwise permitted for review, by one party to the other in 

connection with the proposed transactions. For purposes of this paragraph, “Confidential 

Information” means information supplied by one party to the other, except information 

which is part of public record. 

 

SECTION 12 - FORCE MAJEURE 

Any prevention, delay, nonperformance or stoppage due to any of the following 

causes shall excuse nonperformance for a period equal to the duration of the force 

majeure event. The causes referred to above are strikes, walkouts, labor disputes, failure 

of power, irresistible superhuman cause, acts of public enemies of the State or United 

States, riots, insurrections, civil commotion, governmental restrictions or regulations or 

controls (except those reasonably foreseeable in connection with the uses contemplated 

by this Agreement), casualties not contemplated by insurance provisions of this 

agreement, or other causes beyond the reasonable control of the party obligated to 

perform.  

 

SECTION 13 - INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense, and indemnify 

DISTRICT, its officers, employees, and agents against any and all liability, claims, losses, 

damages, or expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising from all negligent or 

reckless acts or omissions, or acts of willful misconduct of CONSULTANT or its officers, 

agents, or employees in rendering services under this agreement; excluding, however, 
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such liability, claims, losses, damages, or expenses arising solely from DISTRICT’S 

active negligence or willful acts. 

 

SECTION 14 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 (a) The CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the 

contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property arising from 

or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the CONSULTANT, officers, 

agents, employees, or volunteers. 

 (b) The CONSULTANT shall provide the following coverages: 

  (1) Commercial General Liability insurance written on an occurrence 

basis (Insurance Service Office (“ISO”) policy form CG 00 01 or insurer’s equivalent) in 

the amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal 

injury and property damage. The insurance policy shall be amended to provide that the 

general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work under this contract or the 

general aggregate shall be twice the required per occurrence limit.  

  (2) Business Automobile Liability insurance insuring all owned, non-

owned and hired automobiles - coverage code 1 "any auto" (Insurance Service Office policy 

form CA 0001 or insurer’s equivalent) in the amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit per 

accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

  (3) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance - The 

CONSULTANT and all sub-consultants shall insure (or be a qualified self-insured) under 

the applicable laws relating to workers' compensation insurance, all of their employees 

working on or about the work site, in accordance with the "Workers' Compensation and 

Insurance Act”, Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of California and any Acts 

amendatory thereof. The CONSULTANT shall provide employer's liability insurance with 

limits of no less than $1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 disease policy limit, and 

$1,000,000 disease each employee.  

  (4) Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the CONSULTANT’S 

profession providing coverage for loss, damage or injury arising out of professional acts, 

errors or omissions in the amount of $1,000,000 per claim. If a general policy aggregate limit 

is applicable to the coverage, the general policy aggregate limit shall apply separately to this 

contract (with an appropriate endorsement) or the general policy aggregate limit shall be 

twice the required per claim limit. 

 (c) The required limits for the insurance policies required above may be satisfied 

by a combination of a primary policy and an excess or umbrella policy. 
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 (d) The insurance policies required above shall contain or be endorsed to contain 

the following specific provisions: 

  (1) Commercial General Liability - The DISTRICT and its Board Members, 

officers, employees, agents and volunteers are added as additional insureds. Additional 

insured endorsements shall provide coverage at least as broad as Commercial General 

Liability ISO form CG 20 10 11 85. If ISO form CG 20 10 11 85 is not provided, then ISO 

form CG 20 10 XX XX [most current version] may be provided but must be accompanied by 

ISO form CG 20 37 XX XX [most current version].  

  (2) The CONSULTANT’S insurance shall be primary insurance as 

respects the DISTRICT, its Board Members, officers, employees, agents and volunteers 

and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the DISTRICT shall be excess of the 

CONSULTANT’S insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

  (3) Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policies 

or any breach of a policy warranty shall not affect coverage under the policy provided to the 

DISTRICT, its Board Members, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

  (4) The policies shall contain a waiver of transfer rights of recovery 

("waiver of subrogation") against the DISTRICT, its Board Members, officers, employees, 

agents and volunteers for any claims arising out of the work of the CONSULTANT. 

  (5) The policies may provide coverage which contains deductible or self 

insured retentions. Such deductible and/or self insured retentions shall not be applicable 

with respect to the coverage provided to the DISTRICT under such policies. The 

CONSULTANT shall be solely responsible for deductible and/or self insured retention and 

the DISTRICT, at its option, may require the CONSULTANT to secure the payment of such 

deductible or self insured retentions by a surety bond or an irrevocable and unconditional 

letter of credit. The insurance policies that contain deductibles or self insured retentions in 

excess of $25,000 per occurrence shall not be acceptable without the prior approval of the 

DISTRICT. 

  (6) Prior to start of work under the contract, the CONSULTANT shall file 

with the DISTRICT evidence of insurance as required above from an insurer or insurers 

certifying to the required coverage. The coverage shall be evidenced on an ACORD 

Certificate of Insurance form (latest version) and be signed by an authorized representative 

of the insurer(s). A copy of ISO form CG 20 10 11 85 (or ISO form CG 20 10 XX XX [latest 

version] accompanied by ISO form CG 20 37 XX XX [latest version]) required in above shall 

be attached to the Certificate of Insurance at the time that it is filed with the DISTRICT. 

Should the required coverage be furnished under more than one policy of insurance, the 

CONSULTANT may submit as many certificates of insurance as needed to provide the 
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required amounts. The DISTRICT reserves the right to require certified complete copies of 

any insurance coverage required by this contract but the receipt of such policy or policies 

shall not confer responsibility upon the DISTRICT as to sufficiency of coverage. 

  (7) All Coverages: 

   (i) Each policy required in this Section shall contain a policy 

cancellation clause that provides that the policy shall not be canceled or otherwise 

terminated by the insurer or the CONSULTANT or reduced in coverage or in limits except 

after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been 

given to the DISTRICT, Attention: Project Manager. 

 (e) All insurance required by this contract shall be placed with insurers licensed 

by the State of California to transact insurance business of the types required herein. Each 

insurer shall have a current AM Best rating of not less than A:VII unless prior approval is 

secured from the DISTRICT as to the use of such insurer.  

 (f) The CONSULTANT shall include all subconsultants as insureds under its 

policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each sub-consultant and 

sub-supplier.  

 (g)  All coverages for sub-consultants shall be subject to all of the requirements 

stated herein. The CONSULTANT shall maintain evidence of compliance with the insurance 

requirements by the sub-consultants at the job site and make them available for review by 

the DISTRICT. 

 (h) CONSULTANT shall submit all required insurance documentation identified 

herein to DISTRICT not later than seven (7) calendar days from the initial receipt of this 

agreement for signature.  

 

SECTION 15 – RIGHT TO AUDIT 

  Following execution of this Agreement and for a period of three years following the 

completion of performance, DISTRICT shall have the right to audit the CONSULTANT’S 

invoices and all supporting documentation generated in performance of this agreement. 

 

SECTION 16 - ATTORNEY’S FEES 

            If any action is instituted to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be 

reimbursed all reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs of collection, as well as any other costs 

and expenses incurred in connection with the enforcement effort. 
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SECTION 17 - ASSIGNMENT 

 CONSULTANT shall not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer any obligation or 

interest in this Agreement without the specific written consent of the DISTRICT. 

 

SECTION 18 - INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT 

The CONSULTANT is an independent CONSULTANT and not an employee of the 

DISTRICT. 

  

SECTION 19 - APPLICABLE LAW 

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the 

State of California. 

 

SECTION 20 - LABOR COMPLIANCE 

 (a) Public Works 

  (1) Portions of this project for which services are provided in 

performance of this agreement may be considered a “Public Work” for purposes of 

prevailing wage laws. 

  (2) Channel Islands Beach Community Services District will file a form 

PWC-100 with the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) for this project, when 

applicable. 

  (3)  A consultant, contractor, subconsultant or subcontractor shall not be 

qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the requirements of Section 4104 

of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any contract for Public 

Work, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work pursuant to Labor 

Code Section 1725.5. An unregistered consultant or contractor may submit a bid that is 

authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by Section 10164 

or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the consultant or contractor is registered 

to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 at the time the contract is awarded. 

 (b) Prevailing Wages 

            (1)       CONSULTANT, subconsultants and subcontractors will not pay less 

than the prevailing rates of wages. A determination of the general prevailing rates of per 

diem wages and holiday and overtime work where the work is to be performed is on file 

at the Agency’s offices. CONSULTANT will post one copy of the prevailing rates of wages 

at the job site.  
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            (2)      CONSULTANT shall forfeit as penalty to the Agency a sum of not 

more than $200.00 for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less 

than the prevailing rates. This penalty shall be in addition to any shortfall in wages paid. 

 (c) Travel and Subsistence Payments - Travel and subsistence payments shall 

be paid to each worker as specified by the Department of Industrial Relations for the 

particular craft, classification, or type of work. 

 (d) Hours of Work 

            (1) Eight (8) hours’ labor constitutes a legal day’s work. Workers shall 

be paid at a rate of one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for work in excess of 

eight (8) hours during a calendar day or 40 hours during a calendar week of the foregoing 

hours. 

  (2) As a penalty for failure to pay overtime when required, the 

CONSULTANT, subconsultant or subcontractor shall forfeit to the Agency $25.00 for each 

worker for each calendar day during which such worker works more than eight (8) hours 

and is not paid overtime, and for each week during which such worker works more than 

40 hours and is not paid overtime. 

 (e) Certified Payroll - CONSULTANT shall keep and make available an 

accurate record showing the name of each worker and hours worked each day and each 

week by each worker. CONSULTANT, subconsultant and subcontractor shall furnish 

electronic certified payroll records to the Labor Commissioner in accordance with Labor 

Code Section 1771.4 

 (f) Apprentices - CONSULTANT shall comply with the Labor Code concerning 

the employment of apprentices. 

 

SECTION 21 - SUBSTITUTION OF SUBCONSULTANTS 

 There may be occasion, during the course of this engagement, to substitute or 

introduce a new subconsultant in order to satisfy the requirements for a specific task 

request. Introduction of substitute or new subconsultants will be allowed, but, is subject 

to the express written approval of the DISTRICT.  Such approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

 

SECTION 22 - INTEGRATION 

 This Agreement represents the entire understanding of the parties.  No prior oral 

or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters 

covered by this Agreement. 
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 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

executed as of the date of the latest signature below. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

By:__________________________________ Date _____________ 

 Pete Martinez, General Manager 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

By:__________________________________ Date _____________ 

 District Counsel 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation, INC. 

 

 

By:__________________________________ Date _____________ 

 

Name & Title:________________________________ 

   (please print) 
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Board of Directors: 
 
KRISTINA BREWER, President 
MICHAEL LEBOW, Vice President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Director 
SEAN DEBLEY, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 
Regular Board Meeting, May 14, 2024  
 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  CJ Dillon, Office Manager 
Subject:  Consideration of Resolution 24-01 Requesting Consolidation of the 

Channel Islands Beach Community Services District Election with the 
November 05, 2024, General Election 

Item No.  D-3 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. Adopt Resolution 24-01  
2. Approve Elective Office to be filled form 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No impact. Costs for required notifications will be requested in FY 2024 – 
2025 Operating Budget. 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
The District’s Board election is scheduled for November 5, 2024.  This is a statewide 
consolidated election. The District has historically conducted all its elections utilizing the 
services of the County Clerk’s Office.  The filing period for candidates for our Director positions 
is Monday, July 15, 2024 through Friday, August 9, 2024. 

Attached is Resolution 24-01 which provides for the required language and request that the 
County provide election services for the District. Additionally, the ‘Notice of Elective Offices to 
be filled, designating those offices involved. Staff recommends that the District continues to 
require candidates filling for election to be responsible for the cost of their statement in the 
sample ballot.  This sample ballot is prepared and mailed by the Clerk of the Board as part of 
their service package.  All these provisions are consistent with all the previous elections held for 
the Board of Director elections in District history. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution No. 24-01: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REQUESTING 
CONSOLIDATION OF THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION WITH THE STATEWIDE GENERAL 
ELECTION 

2. Notice to the County Clerk of Elective Offices to be filled form 
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RESOLUTION NO. 24- 01 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHANNEL ISLANDS 

BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF 
THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT GENERAL 

DISTRICT ELECTION WITH THE STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District has called for an election to be held on November 5, 2024, for the purposes of electing 
two (2) District Directors to the Channel Islands Beach Community Services District Board of 
Directors (“Director Election”); and 
 WHEREAS, a Statewide General Election will be held within the County of Ventura on 
that same day; 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Director Election be consolidated with the Statewide 
General Election to be held on the same date and that within the District, the precincts, polling 
places, and election officers of the two elections be the same, and that the Director Election be 
held in all respects as if there were only one election.   
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by 
the Board Community Services District, as follows: 

1. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400 et seq., the Board of Supervisors of Ventura 
County is requested to consent and agree to the consolidation of a Director Election with 
the Statewide General Election on Tuesday, November 5, 2024 pursuant to Elections 
Code Section 10400 et seq. 

2. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10401, the Board of Supervisors of Ventura County 
is authorized to canvass the returns of the Director Election. 

3. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the Board of Supervisors of Ventura County 
is requested to issue instructions to the Ventura County election department to render all 
services, including those services specified in Elections Code Section 10418, and take 
any and all steps necessary for the holding of the consolidated election.  

4. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District recognizes that additional costs will be incurred by the County and 
thereby agrees to reimburse the County in full for the services performed in accordance 
with established charges and procedures for such services. 

5. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 13307(c), each candidate is to pay for the printing, 
handling, translating, and mailing of the candidate's statements.  

6. Pursuant to Elections Code Section 15651, in the event of a tie vote, the vote shall be 
determined by lot. 
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THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION is approved and adopted by the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District Board of Directors on this 14th day of May 2024, by the following 
roll call vote:  

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

By: _____________________________________ 
President of the Channel Islands Beach Community 

Services District Board of Directors 

I, Erika Davis, Secretary to the Board of Directors of Channel Islands Beach Community Services 
District, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors of said District, held on the 14th day of May 2024, and was adopted at this 
meeting. 

________________________________________ 
Erika F. Davis, Clerk of the Board

136



Channel Islands Beach Community Services District

Director

Peter Martinez, General Manager
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Regular Board Meeting, May 14, 2024  
To:    Board of Directors  
From:    Pete Martinez, General Manager  
Subject:    District Administration and Operations Facility Construction Update 
Item:    D-4 
  
RECOMMENDATION:   
  

1. Receive and file. 
 
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
I am pleased to provide you with an update on the construction progress for the District 
Administration and Operations Facility. Here are the key highlights: 
 
1. Current Progress and Timeline: Construction began on October 2, 2023, and is 42% 

complete as of April 30, 2024.  
 
2. Timeline: Based on the General Contractor’s (GC) baseline schedule and current critical path 

items the Project Team feels the GC is on schedule with a scheduled completion date of 
September 30, 2024. 

 
3. Budget Status: Through April the District has made 7 monthly progress payments for a total 

amount of $1,379,179.81 of the awarded amount of $3,222,327. In addition to the board 
approved contract amount, a 7% contingency of $225,000 was approved. According to 
Gordian, change orders account for approximately 8-14% of all capital construction dollars. 
Gordian provides solutions tailored to public sector construction needs for fast and flexible 
procurement of construction services. For over 30 years they have been helping state, local, 
and federal government agencies effectively manage building projects.  

 
4. Key Achievements: McGillivray is near completion of the rough plumbing, electrical, 

mechanical, HVAC, and fire sprinklers in the Administration building and has completed the 
reframing of the Operations building. 

 
5. Change Orders:  

 
a. Change Order #1 $52,148.08  

i. COR01   Additional Concrete Paving 
ii. COR02   Additional Grading 
iii. COR4R1   Elevator Machine Room Concrete 
iv. COR05  Builders Risk Insurance 
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v. COR06R1   Porous Concrete in lieu of Stormcrete Panels (Credit) 
vi. COR07   Delta 7 Electrical Changes 
vii. COR09   Building 2 Unforeseen Slab Demo and Pour Back 
viii. COR10  Delta 7 Mechanical Changes 
ix. COR11  Elevator Machine Room Door #19 

 
b. Change Order #2 - $42,399.83 – Operations Building (Reframing) 

 
6. Upcoming Milestones: GC is currently working on completing the rough plumbing, electrical, 

mechanical, and HVAC in the Operations building and will be starting the plastering process 
on the Admin building to be followed by the Ops building. 

 
7. Construction Management and Architect Agreements:  

 
a. S.L. Leonard & Associates – As of April 30, 2024, District has paid $32,154 of the 

Board approved $60,000 contract. 
b. Coastal Architects – As of April 30, 2024, District has paid $59,792 of the Board 

approved amount of $81,211.  
 

It is important to note that District staff has self-performed various tasks onsite and will continue 
to self-perform necessary work to help keep project costs at bay. The estimated savings to the 
District at this time is approximately $15,000-$20,000.  
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